
 

 
 
 
 
 
Central Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ  

  
  

please ask for Martha Clampitt 
direct line 0300 300 4032 

date 28 October 2010  
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

 

CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE ADMISSIONS FORUM 
 

 
Date & Time 

Thursday, 11 November 2010 at 8.30 a.m. 
 

Venue at 
Room 14, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford 

 
 

 
Richard Carr 
Chief Executive 

 
To:     The Chairman and Members of the CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE ADMISSIONS FORUM: 
  

Local Education Authority:  Cllr Mrs A M Lewis, Portfolio Holder Children's Services 
  

Community and Voluntary 
Controlled Schools: 

Mrs A Phillips, Headteacher, Streetfield Middle 
School, Dunstable 
Mrs J Woodthorpe, Headteacher, Campton Lower 
School 
 

Foundation and Trust Schools: 

Mr D Brandon-Bravo, Headteacher, Parkfields 
Middle School, Toddington 
Mr S Fell, Headteacher, Harlington Upper School 
 

Voluntary Aided Schools: 

Mrs P Cotton, St Vincent's Primary School, 
Houghton Regis 
Mr N Sharpe, Ashton Middle School, Dunstable 
Mrs C Spurgeon, Head Teacher, St Mary's Lower 
School, Clophill 
 

Church of England Diocese: Mr R Slade, Diocese of St Albans 
 

Roman Catholic Diocese: 
Mrs F Image, Roman Catholic Diocesan 
Representative 
 



Parent Governor: 

Mr I Robinson, Parent Governor, Caldecote VA 
Lower School 
Mr B Sear, Parent Govenor Representative 
 

Local Community: 

Ms W Anderson-Welsh, Ethnic Minorities Groups 
Mrs D Day, Virtual School Headteacher, Central 
Bedfordshire (representing Looked After Children) 
Squadron Leader Michelle Ramsden, RAF Henlow 
 

Academy : 
Mr J Kemp, Vice-Principal, All Saints Academy, 
Dunstable 
 

 
 



 
 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
  

To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

2. MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING 
  

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 23 June 2010 and receive an 
update on matters arising from them. 
 

3. FAIR ACCESS PROTOCOL 
  

To consider any issues relating to the Fair Access Protocol. 
 
 

4. IN-YEAR ADMISSIONS 
  

To consider any issues associated with in-year admissions. 
 
(Please note that Appendices B and C will be circulated separately to the main 
agenda.) 
 

5. ADMISSION ARRANGEMENTS - SEPTEMBER 2012 
  
 

(a) CONSULTATION 
  

The purpose of this report is to inform the Forum of the arrangements for 
consulting on changes to admission arrangements. 
 

  
 

(b) STANDARD ADMISSIONS POLICY 
  

The purpose of this report is to inform the Forum of the change in the 
definition section of the standard admissions policy for community and 
voluntary controlled schools. 
 
 

  
 

(c) ADMISSION NUMBERS 
  

The purpose of this report is to inform the Forum that currently no changes 
are proposed to the admission numbers for community and voluntary 
controlled schools nor are any changes proposed to the exceptions which 
may result in the admission number for a school being exceeded. 
 

  



 
(d) CO-ORDINATED ADMISSION SCHEMES 

  
The purpose of this report is to inform the Forum of the proposed co-
ordinated admission schemes for 2012/2013. 
 

  
 

(e) OPEN EVENINGS 
  

The purpose of this report is to seek the views and agreement of the Forum 
on the proposed dates for open evenings. 
 

  
6. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
  

To agree the dates and times of future meetings:- 
 
22 March 2011 at 8.30am 
and 
28 June 2011 at 8.30am 
 
 



Page 1 of 29 

 
  
 
Meeting: ADMISSIONS FORUM 

Date: 11 November 2010 

Subject: Fair Access Protocol 

Report of: Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Children, Families and 
Learning 
 

Summary: To consider any issues relating to the Fair Access Protocol 
 

 
 
Contact Officer: Claire Warner 

 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
1. 
 
 
2. 
 
3. 

To note the number of pupils admitted through the Fair Access Protocol 
during the 2009-2010 academic year 
 
To seek the views of the Forum on the distance limit for middle schools 
 
That only those academies which had previously been in special 
measures (or removed from special measures within the last two years) 
or under notice to improve, be exempt from admitting pupils through the 
Fair Access Protocol 

 
 
 
Background 
 
1. The Fair Access Protocol was agreed with schools in July 2009 and has been 

operating since September 2009. 
 

2. A key principle of the Protocol is the equitable distribution of ‘hard to place’ students 
across schools.  Appendix A sets out the number of pupils placed through the 
Protocol during the 2009-2010 Academic Year by phase and by category. 
 

3. The current Fair Access Protocol determines a distance of up to five miles from 
home to school placement for lower and middle school students and up to ten 
miles for upper school students. 
 
An analysis of the figures over the last three years across middle schools 
demonstrates that there are some middle schools that due to their geographical 
position and the five mile distance limit, have not had any students placed under 
the Fair Access Protocol. 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 5



Page 2 of 29 

This issue was raised at the Fair Access Protocol Working Group, a head teacher 
and officer group which have met half termly to monitor the Protocol and to try to 
resolve local issues.  The Working Party considered that the issue should be 
raised with the Admissions Forum. The views of the Forum on the distance limit 
for middle schools are sought. 
 

4. 
 

Members of the Forum will recall that it was agreed that a school in challenging 
circumstances and with an unusually high proportion of challenging pupils may be 
exempt from accepting pupils under the Fair Access agreement if: 
 
a) It is in special measures or has recently come out of them (within the last two 

years)  
b) Has been identified by OFSTED as requiring significant improvement and 

therefore given ‘notice to improve’. 
c) Is subject to a formal warning notice by the Local Authority. 
d) Is a Fresh Start school or Academy open for less than two years 
e) Is a secondary school where less than 20% of children are achieving 5 or more 

GCSEs at grades A* - C including English and Maths or a primary school where 
fewer than 55% of pupils achieve level 4 or above at Key Stage 2 in both English 
and Mathematics for four or more consecutive years. 

 
 
Members will note that Academies with a high proportion of challenging pupils are 
currently exempt from admitting pupils through the protocol.  New Academies may 
not fall within this category. The Forum is, therefore, asked to consider a change 
to the Fair Access Protocol which would exempt Academies from admitting pupils 
through the protocol only if they were previously a school in special measures (or 
removed from special measures within the last two years) or under notice to 
improve. 
 
 

  
 
 

 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A   Fair Access Protocol Figures for 2009-2010 
 
Appendix B  Fair Access Protocol – Information Circular 

Agenda Item 3
Page 6



Page 3 of 29 

Appendix A   Fair Access Protocol Figures for 2009-2010 
 
 

Central Bedfordshire pupils allocated schools 
Through the Fair Access Protocol  

September 2009 – July 2010 
 

Pupils admitted by Category within Phase 2009/10 
 
 

Pupils admitted by Reason 2009/2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Phase Category Total 

Lower 
Challenging 
Behaviour 1 

   Exclusion 2 
Lower Total   3 

Middle 
Challenging 
Behaviour 2 

  Exclusion 9 
  Managed Moves 1 
Middle Total   12 

Upper 
Challenging 
Behaviour 3 

  Managed Moves 2 
 Exclusion  17 
Upper Total   22 
Total   37 

Category Total 
Exclusion 28 
Challenging Behaviour 6 
Managed Moves 3 
Total 37 

Agenda Item 3
Page 7



Page 4 of 29 

Appendix B  Fair Access Protocol – Information Circular   
 
 

                                  
 
 

Information Circular 
 
 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

To:  Headteachers and Chairs of Governors of all Central 
Bedfordshire schools  
 
______________________________________________ 
 
 
Subject:  Fair Access Protocol for all phases 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you have a query about the content of the circular please contact the person[s] below: 
 
Claire Warner    
Head of Partnerships and Reintegration  
Phone:  01234  276662 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 8



Page 5 of 29 

 FAIR ACCESS PROTOCOL FOR ALL MAINTAINED SCHOOLS, 
INCLUDING ACADEMIES 

 
1 Introduction 
 

1.1 The School Admissions Code requires all Local Authorities to have Fair Access 
Protocols in place.  All maintained schools and Academies must participate in the 
Local Authority’s protocol. 

 
1.2 The Protocol encourages the local authority and schools to work together in partnership 

to improve behaviour, tackle persistent absence and help support behaviour and 
attendance partnerships.  This protocol has been updated to take account of new 
Regulations and incorporates guiding principles against which to place children who may 
have difficulty securing a school place outside the normal admissions round.  

 
2 Background 
 

2.1 In November 2004 the DCSF issued guidance outlining the expectation that all local 
authorities should have implemented a protocol for sharing ‘hard to place’ secondary 
aged pupils by September 2005. 

 
2.2 This protocol was known as the Hard to Place protocol.  Further and more recent 

guidance was provided in the School Admissions Code 2007 which required all 
admission authorities and Admission Forums to have In-Year Fair Access Protocols in 
place by September 2007.  In December 2008 a revised School Admissions Code was 
presented to Parliament.  The revised School Admissions Code came into legal force in 
February 2009.  The code is made by the Secretary of State for Children, Schools and 
Families under Section 84 of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998 as 
amended by Section 40 of the Education and Inspections Act 2006.   

 
2.3 A key change within the draft protocol is the addition of categories of pupils that must be 

included in the Protocol as minimum. 
 
These are set out below: 
 

§ Children attending PRUs who need to be reintegrated back into mainstream education 
§ Children who have been out of education for longer than one school term 
§ Children whose parents have been unable to find them a place after moving to the area 

because of a shortage of places 
§ Children withdrawn from schools by their family, following fixed term exclusions and unable 

to find another place 
§ Children of refugees and asylum seekers 
§ Homeless children 
§ Children with unsupportive family backgrounds where a place has not been sought  
§ Children known to the police or other agencies 
§ Children without a school place, and with a history of serious attendance problems 
§ Traveller children 
§ Children with special educational needs [but without a statement]  
§ Children with disabilities or medical conditions 
§ Children returning from the criminal justice system 
§ Children of UK service personnel and other Crown Servants 
§ Children who are carers. 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 9



Page 6 of 29 

3. Pupils not covered by the Fair Access Protocol 
 

3.1. Looked After Children and pupils with Statements of Special Educational Need are not 
included in these categories as their placements are determined by other legislation.  
However, from an equity point of view, some pupils within these categories should be 
recognised as a challenging placement and our processes should ensure that they are 
not disadvantaged in any way. 

 
3.2. Furthermore, in order to maintain the principle of ‘fair sharing’ of challenge, where a 

Looked after Child or a child with a Statement of SEN falls into one of the other Fair 
Access categories [e.g. permanently excluded] , they could also be considered for 
recognition under Fair Access procedures. 

 
3.3. Looked After children – admission meeting should be arranged immediately, unless 

there are exceptional circumstances e.g. the pupil is awaiting an imminent change of 
care placement,  As a principle, children should not be moved to a new care placement 
without the education provision being arranged first [including school placement], except 
for emergency cases.  Admission should follow within next six days. 

 
 

3.4. Managed Moves are outside the scope of this protocol.  The Local Authority will provide 
information and guidance on Managed Moves and a successful managed move 
arranged between two schools, can be recorded against the receiving school’s number 
of pupils taken with challenging behaviour, if they meet the criteria.  See Appendix 2. 

 
4. Guiding principles 
 

4.1. At all stages LA officers work in partnership with schools in implementing this protocol. 
 

4.2. Swift action on the basis of sound information is key to the success of this protocol.  It is 
anticipated that all decisions on placement will be actioned within 10 school days. 

 
4.3. The protocol applies in exceptional circumstances, where the circumstances of the child 

mean that normal admissions procedures cannot ensure that the child will be admitted 
to a suitable school as quickly as possible. 

 
4.4. The protocol must work for the benefit of the child. 

 
4.5. All maintained schools, including voluntary aided, voluntary controlled, community, 

foundation and academies must take an equitable share of challenging pupils. 
 

4.6. A balance needs to be struck between finding a place quickly [for instance in an under 
subscribed school or one facing challenging circumstances] and finding a school place 
which is appropriate for the child. 

 
4.7. No school should be asked to take an unreasonable number of challenging pupils, 

particularly in one year group, through this protocol.  No more than two pupils in the 
same year will be identified within one term for any individual school. 

 
4.8. The process of placement needs to be open and fair. 

 
4.9. Reintegration into a mainstream environment may not always be the best solution for a 

child’s needs and other alternatives or flexible arrangements should be considered in 
the long and short term, in particular in Key Stage 4. 

 
4.10. Whilst this protocol covers only the schools within Bedford Central Bedfordshire every 

effort will be made to contact a neighbouring [maintaining] authority to help secure a 

Agenda Item 3
Page 10



Page 7 of 29 

school place in that area under its protocol where appropriate, and with the maintaining 
authority’s agreement. 

 
5. Procedures 
 

5.1 It is essential that detailed information for pupils who have been permanently excluded is 
received from the school within two days, in order to enable the Local Authority to meet 
its statutory responsibility for full time education provision from the 6th day. 

 
5.2 In order to make an accurate assessment on the appropriate placement for a pupil, the 

following information will be collected and considered about the pupil by the Local 
Authority.  

 
§ Pupil Profile 
§ PSP, IEP, PEP, Incident List [previous school] 
§ Exclusions paperwork 
§ Reports for other agencies and professionals 
§ Views of the pupil and parent/carer 
§ CAF – if a CAF has not been completed by the previous school, the Local Authority 

will seek to undertake one as a priority. 
 

5.3 A framework for pupil information has been prepared for pupils who have been 
permanently excluded and are on the roll of the LA short Stay School [PRU] or other 
alternative provision. 

 
This will address the issues raised by Headteachers relating to: 
 

§ Assessment of behavioural and educational needs, strategies and interventions 
undertaken to address the needs 

§ Activities and curriculum followed at  the PRU 
§ Readiness for reintegration  

 
6. Time Scales 
 

6.1. Any pupil, whose placement has been agreed under the Fair Access Protocol, must be 
admitted to the school and added to the register within ten school days of the placement 
being agreed.  This does not interfere with the timescales agreed between the receiving 
school and the PRU, if this is appropriate, on a phased reintegration.  A flow chart of the 
timescales and process is included as Appendix 1. 

 
6.2. For permanently excluded pupils, each pupil’s individual circumstances will be taken into 

account when determining the pathway of provision. 
 
6.3. Some pupils may be able to return to another mainstream school by the sixth day 

following the date of the exclusion.  This will be determined on the basis of information 
made available by the excluding school and any other involvement by outside agencies. 

 
6.4. Where admission to a mainstream school within the first six days is not possible or 

appropriate, pupils will be admitted to a PRU/alternative provision by the sixth day 
following the Headteacher’s decision to exclude.  Where future placement in another 
mainstream school is deemed appropriate, this should be decided within four weeks.  An 
allocation will be made under the protocol and a school admission meeting should be 
arranged within 5 days.  The pupil should be admitted/commence an appropriate 
reintegration programme and be on roll within 10 days of the admission meeting.  
Allowances should be made for those pupils who may need to be admitted to school 
more quickly and who may not need prolonged provision out of a mainstream 

Agenda Item 3
Page 11



Page 8 of 29 

environment.  Pupils being reintegrated into mainstream schools will be supported by 
the PRU who will co-ordinate the programme of support for each pupil. 

 
6.5. Other pupils with a history of challenging behaviour should be taken on roll within six 

school days of a place being allocated. 
 

6.6. Traveller children –admission should be within 2 days and will usually be arranged by 
and supported by the Traveller Education Service following the allocation of a school 
place. 

 
6.7. Other pupils arising in the vulnerable category – admission should be arranged and the 

pupil be on roll within 15 school days of place being allocated. 
 
 
 
7. Identifying an appropriate school: 
 

7.1. There will be a fair distribution of challenging and hard to place pupils on a turn-taking 
basis. 

 
7.2. Schools should continue to admit local pupils under normal admissions arrangements. 
 
7.3. The protocol applies even if a school is full or oversubscribed, or if there is a waiting list; 

school cannot cite this as a reason for not admitting a high need pupil, unless the 
admission would breach infant class size limits. 

 
7.4. The process aims to be fair to all schools, particularly those who might otherwise be 

asked to take more than others [such as schools with spare places] 
 

7.5. There is an agreed maximum number of challenging pupils for any school to accept 
through the protocol in any one year, based on the size of the school. 

 
7.6. Allocation to a specific school is ratified by the Head of Partnerships and Reintegration. 
 
7.7. Parental preference should be considered but will not override the protocol. 

 
7.8. The needs of the child, geographical distance and related travel costs must be central in 

making a decision. 
 
7.9. Genuine concerns of a school about the admission of a particular pupil should be taken 

into account. 
 

7.10. Where possible religious affiliation should be matched to the receiving school but this 
should not override the protocol. 

 
 
7.11. Schools must respond immediately to requests for admission, and should not insist on 

an appeal being heard. 
 
7.12. All schools agree to take challenging pupils in the categories listed, regardless of 

whether or not the receiving school has permanently excluded. 
 

7.13. As necessary, all schools would be asked to accept a number of hard to place pupils 
and challenging pupils based on the number of pupils on roll at that school. 

 
7.14. Each school within a geographical area will be asked, in turn, to admit pupils under Fair 

Access  

Agenda Item 3
Page 12



Page 9 of 29 

 
a) The child’s home address would be used to identify appropriate schools in an agreed 

radius [this would increase for older children] 
b) Of those identified, the school highest on the Initial Priority List [see below] would be 

identified and asked to accept the child. 
 

7.15. Special and Unique factors:  In a few instances, special and unique factors might 
mean that the school second or third on the list would be more suitable.  Special and 
unique factors might include the presence in the school of a group of previous peers, 
GCSE choices, maximum infant class size or a short-term challenge around staffing.  
Some factors such as placement in a Key Stage SATs year will apply to all schools and 
would not be considered special and unique.  These factors would be determined by the 
placement group and would need to balance the needs of the pupil seeking admission, 
and those of the school and other pupils.  Genuine concerns by the school, and any 
support needed to overcome these should be negotiated by the Head of Partnerships 
and Reintegration where such factors are recognised, that school would remain at the 
top of the list, willing to accept the next pupil needing admission. 

 
8. How will the school be identified? 
 

8.1. The Initial Priority List would be determined by a one-off benchmarking exercise to 
establish the order for the initial start of the protocol 

 
8.2. Thereafter, a school’s position would be determined by its acceptance of a pupil under 

Fair Access, whereupon the school would move to the bottom of the list and gradually 
work its way up again as other schools moved to the bottom of the list. 

 
8.3. This Initial Priority List would be generated by combining on a 50-50 split: 

a) Deprivation indicator as taken from the Acorn score 
b) Current number of pupils already in the school 

a) with statements for EBD and ASD 
b) who are Looked After 
c) reintegrated in the school in the previous academic year who have 

previously been permanently excluded or on an official managed move 
 
8.4. The priority order would not start afresh at the start of each academic year but would roll 

over into the next academic year.  Thus, over the course of several years, all schools 
would be asked to accept a number of hard to place and challenging pupils regardless 
of their initial starting point on the order. 

 
9. How would a geographically appropriate school be identified? 
 

9.1. In most situations, it is best for a young person to attend a school near their home to 
reduce lengthy and tiring journeys, and prevent alienation from local friendship patterns. 

 
9.2. The agreed radius would be: 
 

Lower Schools within 5 miles 
Middle Schools within 5 miles 
Upper Schools within 10 miles of the pupil’s home address 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 13



Page 10 of 29 

9.3. Maximum number of pupils to be admitted    
Outside of the normal admissions processes and the phase transfer arrangements, each 
school will be asked to admit a maximum number of pupils through the protocol, 
depending on the size of the school, during each academic year. 
 
         Number on roll: Maximum number of pupils to be  

admitted in one year 
Less than 100 1 
Under 250 2 
250 – 499 3 
500 – 899 4 
900 - 1200 5 
1200+ 6 
 

 
9.4. The January Schools Census information will be used as the basis for determining 

number on roll. 
 
9.5. Schools will not be asked to admit more than two pupils with similar needs or in the 

same year group within one term. 
 

9.6. When a school reaches its maximum number of pupils to be accepted under this 
protocol, it remains static on the list until all other geographically appropriate schools 
have also taken their maximum. 

 
9.7. Should an unprecedented high number of pupils need to be admitted in an area, or 

across the county [for instance if exclusions were to rise substantially], these maximum 
limits would need to be renegotiated with schools. 

 
10. Schools in Challenging circumstances 
 

10.1. It has been agreed that schools in challenging circumstances and with an unusually 
high proportion of challenging pupils may be exempt from accepting pupils under the 
Fair Access agreement if:  

 
a) A school is in Special Measures [including those within the two year window] 
b) Has been identified by OFSTED as requiring significant improvement and therefore given 

‘notice to improve’. 
c) Is subject to a formal warning notice by the Local Authority. 
d) Is a Fresh Start school or Academy open for less than two years. 
e) Or is within  the designated attainment categories as defined by the new School Admissions 

Code of Practice1 
 
10.2. While these circumstances are in force, the school will not normally be expected to 

accept pupils through the Fair Access protocol but will remain at the top of the list until it 
is once more eligible to admit a pupil. 

 
11. Parental preference 
 

11.1. Some under-subscribed schools may find that they have been required under 
admissions legislation to admit an undue proportion of children with a recent history of 
challenging behaviour, or facing an actual or threatened permanent exclusion from 
another school. 

                                                
1 a secondary school where less than 20% of children are achieving 5 or more GCSEs at grades A* - C 
including English and Maths  or a primary school where fewer than 55% of pupils achieve level 4 or above 
at Key Stage 2 in both English and mathematics for four or more consecutive years. 

Agenda Item 3
Page 14



Page 11 of 29 

 
11.2. It is intended that the fair Access Protocol will lessen this by all schools admitting a 

more even share of such children, including children excluded from other schools. 
 

11.3. Furthermore, where a place is sought to a school in Challenging Circumstances [see 
11.1 above] through parental preference and a pupils is deemed to be within one of the 
Fair Access categories or is challenging as per the QCA questionnaire filled in by the 
previous school, then such a pupil should ideally be placed through the Fair Access 
Protocol, rather than through parental preference. 

 
11.4. Where this cannot lawfully be avoided, then the admission of this pupil would be 

recognised as counting towards the receiving school’s allocation of fair share. 
 

11.5. Because of the high volume of in-year applications received by the Admissions team it 
will not be possible to identify challenging pupils applying to schools other than those in 
Challenging Circumstances;: the school in receipt of the application needs to raise 
concerns with the Head of Partnerships and Reintegration to identify whether such a 
pupil should be considered as a Fair Access placement. 

 
12. Support for the pupil and the school 
 

12.1. The admission of a challenging pupil through the Fair Access Protocol will make 
additional demands on the resources of the receiving school.  While there is an 
expectation that the school will deploy such resources as it has for the benefit of these 
pupils, this can be difficult to arrange in the short term, particularly when the arrival of 
the pupil is unexpected. 

 
12.2. The Local Authority will deploy its resources in supporting the needs of these pupils 

and ensuring that their placement under the Fair Access Protocol is successful. 
 

12.3. If a school identified through the Fair Access Protocol thinks that additional support will 
be required, they should put in writing to the Head of Partnerships and Reintegration the 
nature of the support required, timescales and review dates.  The request will be 
considered swiftly by the BEP panel which meets fortnightly.  Cases that require an 
urgent response will be considered out of panel.  Support may not always be in the form 
of funding but may involve input from other agencies or Services.  Support will usually 
be for one term in the first instance. 

 
12.4. All pupils reintegrating from the PRU will remain on dual roll with the PRU and receiving 

school.  The placement will be monitored for at least one term. 
 

12.5. The AWPU will travel with the pupil to the new school. 
 
13. Transport entitlement 
 

13.1. Apart from already agreed categories, such as permanently excluded pupils, the 
entitlement to transport for all other categories of pupils placed under Fair Access will be 
in accordance with the LA Transport Policy.  Any agreement to transport would be 
speedily enacted. 

Agenda Item 3
Page 15



Page 12 of 29 

Appendix 1     Reintegration Process  
for pupils who have been permanently excluded. 

 
 
 

 
Action/Event 

 
Responsibility 
for Provision 

 
Time 
Line 

D
ay

 1
 

D
ay

 3
 

D
ay

 5
 

D
ay

 6
 

D
ay

 1
0 

 

D
ay

 1
6 

D
ay

 2
5 

D
ay

 4
0 

D
ay

 4
6 

 
A pupil is permanently excluded. 
 
The excluding school informs the 
Local Authority [ISO] by email and 
by telephone the day of the 
exclusion. 
 
School sends to ISO copy of letter 
and information concerning the 
exclusion and the pupil by email and 
by letter.  This must include a copy 
of the exclusion letter. 
ISO Team requests access, usually 
the PRU. to alternative, full-time 
provision aimed at supporting re-
integration to designated school or 
Further Education.  
 

 
School 

 
School 

 
 
 
 

School 
 
 
 
 

School 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 day 

 
Excluding School supplies relevant 
information concerning the exclusion 
and the pupil history [as requested 
on Day1 by email and by post 
within three school days of the 
exclusion. 
 

 
School 

 
3 days  

 
LA starts to collect other relevant 
information.  CAF is initiated. 
 

 
School 

 
5 days 
 

 
Full-time provision begins and ‘per-
pupil funding’ is transferred 
 

 
Local Authority 

 
6 days 
 

 
Parental and pupil views established 
and Protocol explained to family. 
 

 
Local Authority 

 
5 – 10 
days  

 
Governor’s Disciplinary Panel must 
meet within 15 days of the 
exclusion, if not earlier. 
 
 
 
 

 
Local Authority 

 
15 
days   

 

        

Agenda Item 3
Page 16



Page 13 of 29 

Action/Event Responsibility 
for Provision 

Time 
Line 

D
ay

 1
 

D
ay

 3
 

D
ay

 5
 

D
ay

 6
 

D
ay

 1
0 

 

D
ay

 1
6 

D
ay

 2
5 

D
ay

 4
0 

D
ay

 4
6 

 
LA officers will have considered 
decision and shared their knowledge 
 

 
Local Authority 

 
 
 
 

 
Contact with Headteacher of 
identified school to be made within 
48 hours of group decision. 

 
Local Authority 

 
Circa 
25 
days 
 

 
Headteacher of identified school 
must respond within two working 
days of being informed of the 
decision. 
 

 
Local Authority 

 
 
 

 
Meeting with Headteacher and or 
Multi-professional Meeting to be 
conducted within 7 days of 
Headteacher’s response. 
 
Date arranged for multi-professional 
meeting to arrange re-integration 
package with the school and set up 
the Individual Pupil Plan within 14 
days of Headteacher’s response 
 
Independent Appeals Panel meets if 
appropriate. 
 

 
 
Local Authority 

 
 
 
 
Circa 
Day 
40 

 
Pupil goes on roll of identified 
School and agreed re-
integration begins if appropriate 
within seven weeks of exclusion 
date and within six weeks of 
temporary alternative provision. 
Pupil is dual rolled with the PRU 
and the reintegration for the 
first six weeks of the 
reintegration from the date they 
go on the new school roll. 
 

 
 

School 

 
Day 
46 
 

 
 

     

 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 17



Page 14 of 29 

                                                                       
 
 

Good Practice in the Reintegration of Excluded Pupils 
 
In the interests of the individual pupil, the family, the local community and society generally, a 
well organised, timely and personalised process of reintegration is essential. 
 
The LA undertakes to: 
 

1. Take account of particularly difficult year groups in schools when considering the 
placement of an excluded child into one of these groups. 

 
2. Take account of undersubscribed year groups that have taken a disproportionate 

number of excluded pupils from other schools. 
 

3. Advise parents about the FAP and the focus on co-ordinated reintegration. 
 

4. If, prior to the exclusion, the pupil was receiving support from the Behaviour Support 
Team, continued support will be negotiated with the new school. 

 
5. Greys will negotiate a reintegration programme to support the pupil’s placement in 

discussion with the receiving school. 
 

6. If, during the period of exclusion, the pupil was receiving support from a home tutor, 
the tutor will continue to be employed if necessary during a time-limited period covering 
the reintegration/induction period. 

 
7. Where there has been no Behaviour/home tutor support, the LA will provide a Behaviour 

Support Service consultation session within three weeks of admission [if requested by 
the school], where advice will be offered on the first IEP/PSP, the targets to be set and 
the strategies for achievement.  This service will be provided by the EP if the pupil is 
well-known to the EPS.  

 
8. Where the pupil has a statement of special educational needs, the Assessment and 

Monitoring Officer [SEN] will follow Code of Practice procedures and ensure that funding 
transfers with the pupil. 

 
9. The LA will offer transport to the designated school in line with current Council policy. 

 
10. Where budgets allow, assist parents with the costs of new school uniform where the 

family experiences financial difficulties as this could be a barrier to successful 
reintegration. 

 
 
 
 
The school undertakes to 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 18



Page 15 of 29 

1. Accept an excluded pupil within the ‘best chance’ principle including where the year 
group is oversubscribed, if recommended by the Bedfordshire Education Panel. 

 
2. Once referral papers have been received, admit the pupil within 10 school days.  [This 

to be extended to a maximum of 12 days if the start date would then be the first day of 
a new term], unless it is agreed by BST/PRU and the receiving school that this would 
not be in the best interests of the pupil. 

 
3. Following the panel’s recommendation naming the new school and the LA’s placement, 

the receiving school will have a pre-entry meeting with the support services and other 
involved agencies. 

 
4. Arrange admissions meetings promptly and avoid unnecessary delays such as calling 

governors’ meetings to discuss the case. 
 

5. Make the re entry meetings positive and encouraging, emphasising the importance of 
the fresh start.  The purpose of the admissions meeting is to share necessary 
information with parents [for example, school hours, school uniform] and to gather 
sufficient information to ensure that an appropriate induction package can be put in 
place, the pupil can be allocated a tutor group and a timetable can be drawn up.  A PSP 
should be drawn up at this meeting. 

 
Parents undertake to 
 

1. Reinforce all the messages about the importance of a fresh start and the high 
expectations that the new school will be a success. 

 
2. Attend the reintegration meeting and be clear about the way in which they will support, 

in partnership with the school, by attending any subsequent review meetings about their 
child’s progress and by fulfilling their parental responsibilities for their child’s education. 

 
3. Contact the school if there are any reasons for concern at home or at school. 

 
Pupils undertake to 
 

1. Attend punctually and regularly. 
 

2. Work positively in class and hand in homework. 
 

3. Work positively with support staff in place to help them and to participate in the review 
process. 

 
4. Conform to the school’s code of conduct. 

 
The induction process should include time spent with the pupil to ensure they understand what 
is involved in all of the above. 
 
The induction process is the responsibility of the school but the process and subsequent 
support may include BST/PRU, EPS, EWS as appropriate and also Connexions for pupils aged 13 
or over. 
 
The Reintegration Programme should have regular review dates which should include the active 
participation of the pupil and their parents. 

Agenda Item 3
Page 19



Page 16 of 29 

Appendix   2       
                                                                                                        
            

                             
                                                           

Managed Moves Protocol for  
Central Bedfordshire Schools 

 
 
Introduction 
 
The updated DCFS guidance on Exclusion from schools and pupil referral units ‘Improving 
Behaviour and Attendance’ September 2007, make clear that permanent exclusion will be the 
last resort after a range of measures have been tried to improve the pupil’s behaviour.  These 
include: 
 

• Restorative justice 
 

• Mediation 
 

• Internal seclusion   
 

• Managed move 
 
The DCFS makes clear that a collective expectation of both schools and Local Authorities is that 
managed moves must be considered prior to a permanent exclusion being implemented, where 
appropriate. 
 
The exclusion of a pupil permanently from school has long term negative effects for the child/ 
young person and is also a negative experience for school staff who will have worked to 
support the pupil through different strategies. 
 
The use of a carefully managed transfer for a pupil who is: 
 

• at risk of permanent  exclusion or 
 

• in response to an intractable problem in the current school, where a fresh start at a 
new school could be a solution, with the agreement and co-operation of all involved, is 
likely to have much more positive outcomes for everyone. 

 
Principles 
 

• Schools consider and try a range of alternative strategies to avoid exclusion where there 
is serious breach of a school’s behaviour policy. 

 
• A Managed Move is a voluntary agreement based on sound educational principles, 

the terms and conditions of which should be agreed by the pupil, parents/carers, the 
home school and the receiving school and recorded in a managed moves agreement. 

 

Agenda Item 3
Page 20



Page 17 of 29 

• A managed move usually forms part of the pupil’s Pastoral Support Programme [PSP].  A 
PSP would normally have been in place for some time [up to 16 weeks in DCFS 
guidance]. 

 
• There must be a realistic chance that a change of school will lead to a change of 

behaviour for the better. 
 

• There should never be more than four weeks between planning a managed move and 
starting at the new school. 

 
• Appropriate support services such as Behaviour Support, Psychology and Specialist 

Teaching Service, Educational Welfare Service should have been involved. 
 
Criteria 
 

• A pupil considered for a managed move is normally at least at school action of the SEN 
Code of Practice 

 
• There is a shared view [school, family, LA services] that the school has used all its 

available strategies as outlined in the PSP/IEP and that some of the strategies might 
work in a different setting. 

 
• There is a clear audit of pupil’s strengths, the nature of the difficulties and pupil and 

family views to form the basis of the action planning within the new school. 
 

•  the pupil is likely to be permanently excluded for a serious one off offence 
 

•  the relationship between the pupil and a group of peers/or staff has broken down 
irreconcilably. 

 
For pupils with SEN statements and LAC, other considerations are necessary. 
 

• If the pupil has an SEN statement the home school should consider whether it is more 
appropriate to initiate the Annual Review process and should contact the Assessment 
and Monitoring team for advice.  Managed moves should not usually be considered for 
pupils undergoing a statutory assessment. 

 
• If the pupil is a Looked After Child then the Inclusion Support Officer will liaise with the 

Advisory teacher for LAC, and the named social worker. If a managed move is 
considered appropriate, a member of the LAC team must attend the planning meeting at 
the home school.  No managed move should take place which would have a negative 
impact on examination outcomes. 

 
A managed move would not be appropriate when: 
 

• a pupil is a persistent non- attendee 
 

• a pupil is seeking a straight forward transfer to a new school 
 

• a pupil is not on a school roll 
 

• a pupil will not return to the home school if the placement is unsuccessful. 
 
Outline of the Managed Move Process 
 
During the managed move the pupil must remain on the roll of the home school. 

Agenda Item 3
Page 21



Page 18 of 29 

 
The first point of contact for schools to discuss whether a managed move is appropriate is 
through contact with the appropriate Inclusion Support Officer for the school. 
 
Identification of receiving school may be dependent on local circumstances and protocols but 
usually the Headteacher contacts the possible receiving school directly or, contacts the 
Inclusion Support Officer to do so on their behalf. 
 
The home school in liaison with the Inclusion Support Officer completes the Managed Moves 
Proforma. 
 
A planning meeting should be held in the receiving school prior to admission. It is important to 
ensure that the parents/carers, pupil and relevant support services are fully involved in this 
meeting.  Children’s Service Support Staff are expected to prioritise attendance at these 
meetings.  
 
The meeting should focus on identifying the appropriate support needs and strategies aimed at 
facilitating a successful fresh start.  
 
The home school have a responsibility to ensure that the new school have all the information 
required about the pupil’s strengths and difficulties and learning profile available for the 
meeting.  
 
The key issues for the meeting are: 
 

− the school’s expectations in terms of behaviour and positive outcomes 
 

− to draw up details of any support to be in place with review dates  
 

− practical issues about timetables, start date, tutor groups, roles and responsibilities.  
 
Once agreement has been reached by all parties on the managed move the ISO will set out the 
arrangements in a Managed Move Agreement.  This will be sent to the parents/carers and a 
copy will be sent to the home school, receiving school, Admissions Team, Transport, the 
schools’ EWOs, Head of Partnerships and Reintegration and as appropriate the Assessment and 
Monitoring Team.  
 
The pupil remains on the roll of the home school until both schools have agreed that the 
managed move appears to have met its aims. This will not usually exceed six weeks. During 
this period the home school should mark the pupil ‘B’ educated off site. The receiving school 
should make the pupil present or absent in the usual way. 
 
The receiving school also keeps a record of the pupil’s achievements and behaviour as 
appropriate. 
 
There should be a review after three weeks and the final review should take place at the 
receiving school. The parents/carers, pupil, ISO and relevant support agencies should be invited 
and a decision taken on whether the placement has been successful. 
 
If it is decided by the head of the receiving school that the placement has been successful, then 
the pupil should be formally admitted.  The home school, receiving school, admissions team, 
Head of Partnerships and Reintegration, school’s EWO’s should be informed by letter form the 
Inclusion Support Officer.  At this stage the pupil is removed from the roll of the school and 
placed on the roll of the new school. 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 22



Page 19 of 29 

If at any time the head of the receiving school considers that the placement is giving rise for 
serious concern, the managed move may be ended by the head teacher and arrangements 
for the pupil to return to their home school must be put in place immediately. The Pastoral 
Support Programme must be updated to reflect the interventions and strategies required to 
support a positive reintegration. 
 
However it would be best practice to ensure there is ongoing monitoring of the placement and 
that any early concerns are shared with both the home school and ISO in order to consider 
other strategies and options. 
 
If the placement is unsuccessful the pupil returns to their home school and the ISO confirms 
this in writing to the home school , receiving school, admissions team, Head of Partnerships and 
Reintegration, schools’ EWO’s. 
 
Finance  
 
The remaining AWPU for the pupil [a pro rata amount depending on the time of year] will be 
transferred from the home school’s budget to the receiving school from the date that the pupil 
transfers onto the receiving school’s roll.  
 
In the same way any funding applicable for a pupil with a statement of SEN would be 
transferred to the receiving school once the pupil was formally on the school roll. 
 
 
Monitoring and reporting  
 
The operation of the Managed Moves Protocol will be monitored and overseen by the Head of 
Partnerships and Reintegration, who has responsibility for the overall monitoring and placement 
of pupils at risk of exclusion and those who have been permanently excluded.  
 
 
Legal Requirements 
 
Managed Moves cannot over-ride the following Legal provisions: 
 

§ a parent’s right to express a preference at any time for a school for their child and the 
right to an appeal if refused. 

 
§ The obligation of the Local Authority and Governors to comply with a parent’s request 

for the pupil’s admission unless it would prejudice the provision of the efficient 
education of other pupils or the efficient use of resources. 

 
§ The sole right of the Headteacher to decide whether to exclude a pupil. 

 
§ The duty of Governors to decide whether to reinstate a pupil. 

 
§ A parent’s right of appeal against their child’s exclusion from school. 

 
§ A parent’s duty to make arrangements for their child’s journey to school. 

 

Agenda Item 3
Page 23



Page 20 of 29 

          
                                                                                          
 

Managed Move Request Form 
 
 
Managed Move Request 
 
Part A   [To be completed by the ‘home’ school] 
 
Pupil’s Personal Details   [Please complete in Block Capitals] 
 
 

Current school:  

Contact Name:  

Designation:  

Surname of Pupil:  

Forename[s]  

Male/Female  

Date of Birth:  

Parent[s]/Guardian[s]  

Name[s]  

Father  

Mother  

Guardian  

Telephone Number[s]           
Home: 
                                               
Mobile: 
                                               
Work: 

 

Previous Non 
Bedfordshire Schools 
attended: 

 

From: 
 

 To:  

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 24



Page 21 of 29 

 
 
 
Concerns 
 
Incidents in school that have given rise to concern: 
 
 
 

 
Physical assault against pupil 

 
 

 
Verbal abuse/threatening 
 

 
 

 
Physical assault against adult 
behaviour 

 
 

 
Verbal abuse/threatening against adult 

 
 

 
Bullying 

 
 

 
Racist abuse 
 

 
 

 
Sexual misconduct 

 
 

 
Drug and alcohol related 
 

 
 

 
Damage 

 
 

 
Theft 

 
 

 
Persistent disruptive behaviour 

 
 

 
Other please specify: 
 
 
 

Strategies 
 
Please briefly outline what positive strategies including support mechanisms have been put in 
place prior to referral, using the LA’s guidance on interventions at school action/school action 
plus and attach a copy of the pupil’s IEP and/or PSP and a social report from the Social Worker, 
if available. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sanctions 
 
Please briefly outline sanctions used.  [The LA already has information on recorded exclusions] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 25



Page 22 of 29 

 
Attendance 
 
Please attach certificates of attendance covering the last 12 months.  For schools using the 
SIMS Attendance module, this can be produced in Attendance by selecting ‘Reports/Individual 
Pupil Reports/Registration Certificate’ 
 
 
Academic Ability – Teacher Assessments 
 
Please comment upon the pupil’s progress in the following subjects with reference to National 
Curriculum attainment levels. 
 
KS1/2/3 [delete inappropriate – See KS4 separately] 
 

Subject NC Levels Teacher Assessments 
 
English 
 

  

 
Maths 
 

  

 
Science 
 

  

 
KS4 Only 
 
GCSEs/GNVQs currently being undertaken by the pupil.  Please list subjects and include details 
of examination board, syllabus etc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Current assessment of performance – please indicate most recent assessment results, for 
example, modular tests and portfolio assessments. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 26



Page 23 of 29 

Agency Involvement 
 
Please indicate if the following agencies are involved with the student. 
 
 
 

 
Behaviour Support 

 
Contact 

 

 
 

 
Welfare Service 

 
Contact 

 

 
 

 
Social Care 

 
Contact 

 

 
 

 
CAMHS 

 
Contact 

 

 
 

 
YOT 

 
Contact 

 

 
 

 
Health Promotion 

 
Contact 

 

 
 

 
Educational Psychology  

 
Contact 

 

 
 

 
Other [please specify]  e.g. 
Traveller Education Service 

 
Contact 

 

 
 
Headteacher’s Signature: 
[Current school] 
 
 
PLEASE PRINT NAME 
 
 
Date:   
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 27



Page 24 of 29 

 
 
PART B   [To be completed by the parent[s]/carer[s] 
 
Parent[s]/Carer[s] signature[s]  
 
I have attended a review meeting of my child’s progress and agree that a managed move to 
an alternative school is my preferred option.   
 
 
Name: 
 
 

   

Parent/carer’s 
signature: 
 

 Date:  

Parent/carer’s 
signature: 
 

 Date:  

Pupil’s Signature: 
 

 Date:  

 
 
Inclusion Support 
Officer signature: 

  
 
Date: 

 

 

Agenda Item 3
Page 28



Page 25 of 29 

 
 

Managed Moves 
 

A Checklist of procedures to follow 
[not necessarily in sequential order] 

 
Note in this section: 
School A is the pupil’s current school 
School B is the school to which transfer is being considered 
 

Early Stages of Consideration 
 

√ 

At School A, pupil identified presenting particularly challenging behaviour for 
whom a managed move to another near-by school would be a positive strategy 
and an alternative to possible permanent exclusion. 
 

 

Discussed fully with all relevant members of school staff, before considering 
proceeding further. 
 

 

Discussed the possible strategy with non school-based staff involved, such as 
local support services and professionals in other agencies, etc. 
 

 

Reviewed all strategies and sanctions previously applied to the pupil [both on and 
off school site] over a reasonable time and satisfied these have not been 
successful. 
 

 

Reviewed the pupil’s written Pastoral Support Programme and confirm this has 
been in place for some while [DCFS 16 week example guide].  The review 
automatically involved and informed the pupil and parent/carer about considering 
a managed move as a possible option. 
 

 

If the pupil is a child looked after, discussed additionally with the member of 
school staff with assigned responsibility, with LAC Advisory Teacher and with the 
social worker[s] involved.  [Note for LAC a strong justification would be needed 
for transfer to be agreed]. 
 

 

If the pupil has a statement of Special Educational Needs, discussed with 
Assessment and Monitoring Casework Officer.  [Accept that as there are SEN 
Code of Practice considerations, likely that an Annual Review meeting will need to 
be called forward and the matter also considered by the LA’s Provisions Panel]. 
 

 

Informal contact with an alternative school[s] to see if a placement is possible 
may take place at this stage.   Identification of receiving school may be 
dependent on local circumstances and protocols but usually the Headteacher 
contacts the possible receiving school directly or, contacts the Inclusion Support 
Officer to do so on their behalf. 
 

 

Notified the School Admissions Team at County Hall of these arrangements. 
 

 

Double-checked that all parties involved remain in agreement. 
 

 

Allowed the parent/carer and pupil time to reflect on the proposal and offered 
them an opportunity to visit the potential receiving school [School B]  School 
have written consent from the parent to begin the process. Without parental 

 

Agenda Item 3
Page 29



Page 26 of 29 

consent a Managed Move cannot proceed. 
 
Considered how the pupil will travel daily to the ‘receiving’ school.  Confirmed to 
the parent/carer this is normally their responsibility.  Indicated to them whether, 
exceptionally, help can be offered by the school in this particular case. 
 

 

School A should create and send a ~common Transfer File [CTF] to School B 
without making the pupil a leaver [from School A] 
School B should import the CTF then change the registration status of the pupil. 
 

 

Accept that at School A, we continue to mark the register for the pupil until they 
formally transfer to School B’s roll. 
 

 

Identified in School A both a senior member of staff to be the ‘lead/link’ person, 
and another member of staff to deal with day-to-day matters, including keeping 
the parent/carer and pupil informed at all times. 

 

 
 
 

Ongoing Contact between Staff in School A and School B 
√ 

 
Heads of Schools A and B have discussed the proposal together and agreed 
shared responsibility for the managed move arrangements. 
 

 

The senior member of staff in School A, has been given ‘lead’ responsibility, 
including liaising with their counterpart in School B and with their ISO lead. 
 
 

 

The day-to-day co-ordinator in School A is liaising with their counterpart in 
School B;  is making any arrangements for the parent/carer and pupil to visit 
informally the potential School B [and deciding whether to accompany them]; 
and for them to provide feed-back about the visit. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Formal Planning Meeting to Draw Up the Plan/Agreement as Part of the 

Pastoral Support Programme 

√ 

 
The ISO is responsible for arranging a planning meeting between School A and 
School B.  [Other parties being invited to attend will include the Behaviour 
Support Team, Education Social Work Services; together with the parent/carer 
and pupil]. 
 

 

A draft written managed move plan/agreement, linked to a Pastoral Support 
Programme, is being drawn up by the ISO in accordance with agreements 
reached at the planning meeting. This will show the time-limited period of 
transfer [maximum six weeks], including expected start and end dates, and 
indicate whether to be a phased introduction.  It will target full time attendance 
being achieved at the earliest opportunity and within the 6 weeks timescale. 
 

 

Agenda Item 3
Page 30



Page 27 of 29 

School A has checked to ensure that the pupil’s name remains on their roll until 
final transfer occurs.  Staff there are marking the pupil as receiving education ‘off-
site’ during this time and continue to keep attendance records, to be included 
later in the Form 7, LA Census and other attendance statistics. 
 

 

During this time, School B is recording them as an ‘educated off site pupil’ there 
and providing School A with attendance information.  Any advice needed on 
attendance coding is being obtained from the Education Welfare Officer. 

 

 
 

 
Initial Preparation Work to be Undertaken by Each school 

√ 

 
School A is preparing the pupil to be ready for transfer, including providing a 
mentor, such as a Connexions Personal Adviser. 
 

 

School B is preparing an induction programme for the pupil, including the 
identification of key members of staff/a mentor to help ease the settling-in 
process. 

 

The two schools have agreed between them what additional pupil records need to 
manually transfer to School B, to include a copy of the Statement of Educational 
Needs, where appropriate. 
[Note: School A remains responsible for a statemented pupil until transfer 
completed including, in conjunction with School B, calling any Annual or 
Transition Review meetings and drawing up associated plans, etc.  The SEN 
Casework Officer to be informed/involved for advice and guidance]. 

 

Both schools are ensuring that a pupil entitled to free school meals, and 
remaining on the roll of School A¸ is enabled to continue receiving them when 
attending School B during the period of transfer.  Both schools should record 
free school meal eligibility in their SIMS system. 

 

An understanding has been reached and agreed with the parents/carers about 
whether, during the period of transfer, the pupil is required to wear the school 
uniform of School B and, if so, how this may be arranged. 

 

 
 
 
 

 
Monitoring and Review Arrangements 

√ 

 
Effective monitoring and review arrangements between the two schools are in 
place.  Review meetings are being held as part of monitoring arrangements.  [The 
ISO may offer to arrange them]. 
 

 

 Clear criteria for evaluating whether the transfer has been successfully completed 
have been established and shared with all.  This ensures that during the transfer 
‘lead-in’ period there is no situation where staffing School A are unaware of any 
difficulties being experienced in School B. 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 3
Page 31



Page 28 of 29 

If the Transfer is Successful 
 

√ 

 
Through proper review, at a meeting attended by all, the transfer is confirmed, 
the pupil is made a leaver from School A, and formally admitted to School B on 
agreed date.   
 

 

School B has confirmed this to both the School Admissions Team and the ISO. 
 

 

School B has arranged for the Pastoral Support Programme, originally in place in 
School A, to be reviewed and amended, as necessary, within the first four weeks 
of the pupil’s admittance there. 
 

 

 
 

If the Transfer is unsuccessful 
√ 

There are very exceptional circumstances in this case where a limited extension 
to the 6 week lead-in period is agreed by all to be appropriate.  [For instance, the 
pupil being transferred has unexpectedly suffered long-term absence through 
illness]   If so, a revised transfer completion date is now recorded on the 
managed move plan/agreement. 

 

Through proper review, at a meeting held shortly before the due transfer date 
and attended by all, the managed move is considered to be unsuccessful.  The 
pupil is ‘returning’ to School A, where [s]he has remained on roll.  School A will 
decide whether to arrange a re-admission meeting for the pupil, but without 
delay.  School B should enter a leaving date for the ‘Guest’ pupil. 
 

 

School A has advised both the School Admissions Team and their ISO  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 32



Page 29 of 29 

Information to include in the written plan/agreement which forms part of  
the Pastoral Support Programme. 

 
• name, age, NCY of pupil involved; 

 
• Names of ‘sending’ and ‘receiving’ schools; 

 
• names of senior members of staff identified in each school with lead overseeing 

responsibilities; 
 

• names of other members of staff identified in each school with day-to-day co-ordinating 
responsibilities; 

 
• start and end dates of managed moves arrangement, within a maximum timescale of 

six school weeks, indicating if a phased/part-time start or time in, e.g. Learning support 
unit, involved; 

 
• date when Pupil’s Pastoral Support Programme will be reviewed in the ‘receiving’ school 

[not less than four weeks after transfer completed]; 
 

• an indication of ‘who-will-be-doing-what’ during the period of the managed move, e.g. 
School A will ……;    School B will ……..;  the LA will ……..’ [ the later including an 
expectation of standard of behaviour/compliance required of the pupil, reflecting the 
need for some in-built flexibility during the ‘settling-in’ period]; 

 
• information about any specific support ‘package’ in place; 

 
• information about any specific funding arrangements; 

 
• information about support service involvement; 

 
• dates of future planning and review meetings as proposed; 

 
• criteria to be applied to determine if transfer successfully completed; 

 
• responsibility for transporting pupil daily to ‘receiving’ school. 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 2010 
 
g:\pab\admiss\word\forum central beds\11 nov 10\in-year admissions.doc 

Agenda Item 3
Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
Meeting: ADMISSIONS FORUM 

Date: 11 November 2010 

Subject: In-Year Admissions 

Report of: Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Children, Families and 
Learning 
 

Summary: To consider any issues associated with in-year admissions 
 

 
 
Contact Officer: Rosa Bonwick 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
To note any issues relating to the new in-year admission arrangements 

 
 
Background 
 
1. At the last meeting of the Forum on 23 June 2010, members requested that a 

report be brought to the next meeting to consider any issues arising from the 
requirement that local authorities co-ordinate all in-year admissions from 
September 2010. 
 

2. The Local Authority issued information on the in-year arrangements to all schools 
and the Academy at the start of the Autumn term 2010.  A copy of the In-Year 
Guidance Notes for Schools is attached at Appendix A.  The In-Year application 
form is attached at Appendix B and the In-Year Guidance notes for Parents and 
Carers are attached at Appendix C. 
 

3. 
 

The Local Authority has not been made aware of any issues relating to the new 
arrangements. However, those arrangements have only been in place for a 
relatively short period of time and it is too soon to be able to assess how well 
those arrangements are operating.  
 

4. The Local Authority would welcome any comments on the new arrangements from 
the Academy and the school representatives on the Forum. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 35



Appendices: 
 
Appendix A   In-Year Guidance Notes for Schools 
 
Appendix B  In-Year Application Form (to be circulated separately) 
 
Appendix C  In-Year Admissions notes of Guidance for Parents and Carers 
  (to be circulated separately) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 2010 
 
g:\pab\admiss\word\forum central beds\11 nov 10\in-year admissions.doc 

Agenda Item 4
Page 36



Appendix A 

Page 1 of 3 

 
 
In-Year Admissions 
Guidance Notes for Schools 

 
The Schools Admissions Code requires Local Authorities, from the Academic Year of 
2010/2011, to co-ordinate all in-year admissions for Academies and maintained schools. The 
following guidance sets out how the School Admission Service will process in-year applications 
for schools in the area and the requirement of schools to forward any applications received for 
their school.  
 
The School Admissions Service is also required by legislation to co-ordinate admission for 
children in the area who would like to attend a school in another local authority area (e.g. 
Hertfordshire).  Similarly, other Local Authorities will forward details of requests for children in 
their area who would like admission to a school in the Bedford Borough or Central Bedfordshire 
local authority areas.  
 
General  
The in-year application form and guidance notes will be available for parents/carers who wish to 
apply for a school place for their child after the start of the academic year or during the 
academic year.  The application form and guidance notes can be downloaded by parents/carers 
from the Local Authority website, collected from the local school or requested from the School 
Admissions Service.  
 
The form enables parents to express a preference for up to 3 schools and to rank their 
preferences. Parents are required to send the form to the School Admissions Service for 
processing. Application forms that are submitted by parents to the school must be forwarded 
to the School Admissions Service. 

 
The form should not be used if the child: 
 

a) has a Statement of Special Educational Needs; 
b) is due to transfer from lower to middle or middle to upper school (including 

applications received after the start of the academic year up to the end of the 
Autumn term).  

c) is due to be admitted into the reception year (including applications received after the 
start of the academic year up to the end of the Autumn term). 

 
 

1. Community and Voluntary Controlled Schools 
 
1.1. The School Admissions Service will contact you, usually by telephone, to confirm the 

number of children in the appropriate year group.  Please make sure that the number 
you give includes any offers that have been made where the child has not yet started at 
the school. 
 

1.2. The school must respond to this request within 2 school days. 
 

School Admissions 
Service 

Agenda Item 4
Page 37



Appendix A 

Page 2 of 3 

 
 

1.3. If a place is available this will be offered by the Local Authority in which the child lives. 
 

1.4. If the child does not already attend a local school you must make arrangements for the 
child to be admitted as soon as possible but within 2 school weeks at the latest.   
 

1.5. If the child does already attend a local school (such applicants are often termed 
“hoppers”) you must make arrangements for the child to be admitted by the beginning of 
the next half term at the latest. 
 

1.6. Parents will be advised to contact you to organise a date for admission.  If the child does 
not arrive on the agreed date please investigate to establish why, then inform the School 
Admissions Service so that we can check any waiting list.  In some cases, for 
safeguarding reasons, you may need to advise the Education Welfare Service (please 
see the Local Authority’s Children Missing Education Procedures). 
 

1.7. If a place is not available the decision will be sent by the Local Authority in which the 
child lives and the child’s name will be added to the waiting list which will be maintained 
in accordance with the information in Appendix A. 
 

1.8. If a child leaves your school from a year group that had reached its Published 
Admissions Number (PAN) please let us know so that a place can be offered from the 
waiting list if applicable. 
 
 

2. Academy, Foundation, Trust and Voluntary Aided Schools 
 
2.1. The School Admissions Service will contact you, usually by telephone, to confirm the 

number of children in the appropriate year group.  Please make sure that the number 
you give includes any offers that have been made where the child has not yet started at 
the school.  We will also need to confirm the correct admissions criterion to be used.  In 
the case of religious criteria we will provide a copy of the Declaration of Religious 
Affiliation form. 
 

2.2. The school must respond to this request within 2 school days. 
 

2.3. If a place is available this will be offered by the Local Authority in which the child lives. 
 

2.4. If the child does not already attend a local school you must make arrangements for the 
child to be admitted as soon as possible but within 2 school weeks at the latest. 
 

2.5. If the child does already attend a local school (such applicants are often termed 
“hoppers”) you must make arrangements for the child to be admitted by the beginning of 
the next half term at the latest. 
 

2.6. Parents will be advised to contact you to organise a date for admission.  If the child does 
not arrive on the agreed date please investigate to establish why, then inform the School 
Admissions Service so that we can check any waiting list.  In some cases, for 
safeguarding reasons, you may need to advise the Education Welfare Service (please 
see the Local Authority’s Children Missing Education Procedures). 
 

2.7. If a place is not available the decision will be sent by the Local Authority in which the 
child lives and the child’s name will be added to the waiting list which will be maintained 
on your behalf in accordance with the information in Appendix A.  If an appeal is lodged 
against this decision please contact us for documentation to assist you with the appeal. 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 38



Appendix A 

Page 3 of 3 

 
 

2.8. If a child leaves your school from a year group that had reached its Published 
Admissions Number (PAN) please let us know so that a place can be offered from the 
waiting list if applicable. 

 
 
Processing alternative preference requests 
 
If the first preference school is not available, the School Admissions Service will consider 
alternative preferences in accordance with the process identified in Sections 1 and 2. 
 
If all of the preferred schools are full and the pupil lives in Bedford Borough or Central 
Bedfordshire, a place will generally be offered at the nearest school with places available.  
However, it may be necessary to make a priority place available. 

 
Evidence 
Please note that parents are asked to submit evidence to confirm their child’s address by 
providing official documentation, e.g. council tax bill, a recent utility bill (gas, electric or water), a 
rental agreement, child benefit annual statement or family tax credit information (see Notes of 
Guidance for Parents/Carers).  If a parent/carer is moving from abroad to live in the UK, they 
must also provide a copy of the relevant pages of their child’s passport, their passport and visa 
(if applicable) as evidence to confirm that the parent/carer and child have the right of abode in 
the UK. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g:\pab\admiss\word\forum central beds\11 nov 10\in-year guidance notes for schools.doc 

Agenda Item 4
Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
Meeting: ADMISSIONS FORUM 

Date: 11 November 2010 

Subject: Admission Arrangements September 2012 - Consultation 

Report of: Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Children, Families and 
Learning 
 

Summary: The purpose of this report is to inform the Forum of the arrangements 
for consulting on changes to admission arrangements. 

 
 
Contact Officer: Rosa Bonwick 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
To note the requirement on admission authorities to consult every three years, 
unless the admission arrangements are to be changed. 
 
 
 
Background 
 
1. 
 

The School Admissions Code requires admission authorities to consult, every 
three years, on their proposed admission arrangements unless the admission 
arrangements are not the same as those determined following the last 
consultation. The consultation must last for a minimum of eight weeks and 
must take place between 1 November and 1 March. 
 

2. Admission authorities must consult with their local authority, all other 
admission authorities within the relevant area, the Admissions Forum, 
admission authorities in neighbouring local authority areas (as prescribed in 
the regulations), the relevant religious authority (in the case of faith schools), 
relevant parents and other groups with an interest in the local area e.g. 
community groups. Where an admission authority proposes an increase in 
their published admission number of 27 or more, the trade union representing 
staff at that school should also be consulted. 

 
3. All admission authorities were required to consult on their arrangements for 

admissions in September 2010. For admissions in September 2011, the Local 
Authority consulted on behalf of admission authority schools, which serve a 
local catchment, on a change to include catchment siblings within the 
oversubscription criteria. Consultation in respect of the admission 
arrangements for September 2012 is, therefore, only required if any further 
changes are proposed.  
 
 

4. The Local Authority will be writing to own admission authority schools and the 
academy to advise them of the timescales for consultation, if any changes are 

Agenda Item 5a
Page 41



 

proposed to their admission arrangements. 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 2010 
 
g:\pab\admiss\word\forum central beds\11 nov 10\consultation.doc 

 

Agenda Item 5a
Page 42



Appendix B 

Page 1 of 11 

CO-ORDINATED SCHEME FOR ADMISSIONS TO MIDDLE,  
PRIMARY, LOWER SCHOOLS AND ACADEMIES 
ACADEMIC YEAR 2012/2013 
 
 
Section 1 
 
Introduction 
 
1.1 The School Standards and Framework Act 1998, as amended by the Education 

Act 2002 and supported by The School Admission (Co-ordination of Admission 
Arrangements) (England) Regulations 2008, requires Local Authorities to 
formulate a scheme for co-ordinating admission arrangements for all maintained 
schools in their area.  Academies are required to participate in the co-ordinated 
scheme. 
 

1.2 A school is defined as any maintained community, voluntary controlled, voluntary 
aided, foundation or trust school or academy in the Central Bedfordshire Council 
area. 

 
1.3 The Local Authority is the admission authority for all community and voluntary 

controlled schools. The admission authority for voluntary aided, foundation and 
trust schools and academies is the governing body of the school or academy. 

 
1.4 This scheme will apply to all middle, primary, lower school and academy 

admissions in the Central Bedfordshire Council area from September 2012. 
 
1.5 Any reference to Central Bedfordshire is a reference to the administrative area of 

the unitary authority. 
 
1.6 The scheme is in two parts. Part A relates to middle schools and any future 

middle phase academies and Part B relates to primary and lower schools and 
lower phase academies. 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 5a
Page 43



Appendix B 

Page 2 of 11 

Section 2 - The Scheme 
  
Part A – Middle Schools and future middle phase Academies 
 
2.1 There will be a standard form known as the Standard Application Forms (SAF). 

 
2.2 The SAF will be used for the purposes of admitting children into the first year of a 

middle school or middle phase academy (Year 5). 
 

2.3 Parents of all children living in Central Bedfordshire and attending a lower school, 
or lower phase academy, in the Local Authority area will receive the SAF. The 
School Transfer booklet, available on request and on the Local Authority website, 
will contain information on: 
 

Ø the schools and academies in Central Bedfordshire; 
Ø dates of open evenings; 
Ø schools’ and academies admission numbers and admissions criteria; 
Ø how to complete the standard application form; 
Ø how to make an on-line application; 
Ø how places are allocated; 
Ø timetable for the application and allocation process; 
Ø school transport 
Ø who to contact for advice 

 
2.4 Parents of children attending a lower school, or lower phase academy, in Central 

Bedfordshire who do not live in the Local Authority area must complete an 
application form available from their home Local Authority.  
 

2.5 Parents of children living in Central Bedfordshire but not attending a lower school, 
or lower phase academy, in the Local Authority area and those who wish to apply 
for a middle school or middle phase academy place in another Local Authority 
may obtain the SAF and School Transfer booklet from the School Admissions 
Service. The SAF and booklet are also available to download from the Local 
Authority website. 
 

2.6 Parents of children living in Central Bedfordshire will be able to apply on-line for a 
school or academy place. 
 

2.7 The SAF or on-line application form will enable parents/carers to:  
 
Ø express a preference for up to 3 schools / academies 

 
Ø give reasons for their preferences 

 
Ø  rank their preferences 

 
The Timetable 
 
2.8 In October 2011 the SAF is sent to parents of all children living in and attending a 

lower school or lower phase academy in the Local Authority area. Parents of 
children who do not live in Central Bedfordshire will be advised to contact their 
home Local Authority. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5a
Page 44



Appendix B 

Page 3 of 11 

2.9 Completed SAFs are to be returned to the School Admissions Service by 15 
January 2012 via the lower school, lower phase academy or to the School 
Admissions Service. On-line applications are also to be submitted by this date. 
Parents of children who do not live in Central Bedfordshire must return their form 
to their home Local Authority.  
 

2.10 By 10 February 2012 applications for places in other Local Authority schools / 
academies are sent to those authorities. 
 

2.11 All preferences will be logged on the database and by 24 February 2012 the 
School Admissions Service will notify the admission authority for each foundation, 
voluntary aided, trust school and academy of every nomination that has been 
made for that school or academy. 
 

2.12 By 5 March 2012 the admission authority for each foundation, voluntary aided, 
trust school and academy will consider all applications for their school or 
academy, apply their oversubscription criteria and provide the School Admissions 
Service with a list of those applicants ranked according to their oversubscription 
criteria. All preferences will be ranked equally against the admissions criteria.  
 

2.13 The School Admissions Service will match the ranked lists against the ranked 
lists of other schools or academies nominated and: 
 
Ø where the child is eligible for a place at only one of the nominated schools or 

academies, that school or academy will be allocated to the child  
 

Ø where the child is eligible for a place at two or more of the nominated schools 
or academies, they will be allocated a place at whichever of these is the 
highest ranked preference 

 
2.14  Between 12 March 2012 and 19 March 2012 information will be exchanged with 

other Local Authorities on potential offers (i.e. a Central Bedfordshire child 
applying for a place in another Local Authority area or a child from another Local 
Authority applying for a place at a Central Bedfordshire school or academy) to 
determine the allocation of a place at the highest ranked preference. 

 
2.15  Where the child is not eligible for a place at any of the nominated schools or 

academies, the child will be allocated a place at the nearest appropriate school or 
academy with a vacancy, but only if the child is resident in Central Bedfordshire. If 
the child does not reside in Central Bedfordshire, parents will be invited to request 
a place at any of the schools or academies that still have vacancies.  Priority will 
always be given to those parents who have expressed a preference for a 
particular school or academy over those who have not. 
  

2.16 On 29 March 2012 all middle schools and middle phase academies will have 
access to details of the pupils to be offered places via the web based School 
Admissions Module.  
 

2.17 On 30 March 2012 the School Admissions Service will post letters to parents of 
children living in Central Bedfordshire notifying them of the outcome of their 
applications, including those who have applied for a place in another Local 
Authority school or academy. Parents who have applied online will be able to 
access the decision online. Parents of children who do not live in Central 
Bedfordshire will be notified by their home Local Authority. 
 
 

Agenda Item 5a
Page 45



Appendix B 

Page 4 of 11 

2.18 By 20 April 2012 parents are to notify School Admissions Service of acceptance 
or rejection of place offered.  If parents do not respond by this date it will be 
assumed that they have accepted the place. 
 

2.19 By 20 April 2012 parents not offered a place will be invited to request a place at a 
school or academy with vacancies. 

 
2.20 From 8 May 2012 the School Admissions Service will co-ordinate the re-allocation 

of any places that have become vacant since 30 March 2012 and will continue to 
co-ordinate admissions until such time as the waiting lists are no longer 
maintained. 
 
 

Waiting Lists 
 
2.21 Pupils not offered a place at their highest preference school or academy or at any 

of their preferred schools or academies are kept on a waiting list to be re-
allocated if places become available. Where a pupil has been offered a place at 
their highest ranked school or academy, they will not be considered for re-
allocation, unless there has been a significant change in their personal 
circumstances. 
 

2.22 Waiting lists will be maintained until the end of the Autumn term 2012. Parents 
wishing their children to remain on the waiting list for a Central Bedfordshire 
school or academy beyond that time will have to notify the School Admissions 
Service in writing. A revised waiting list will then be drawn up and maintained until 
the end of that academic year. 
 
 

Late Applications 
 
2.23 The closing date for applications in the normal admissions round is 15 January 

2012. As far as is reasonably practicable applications for places in the normal 
admissions round that are received late for a good reason will be accepted 
provided they are received before 24 February 2012, the date the allocation 
procedure begins.   
 

2.24 Applications received late with good reason after the allocation procedure has 
begun on 24 February 2012, will be considered if practicable, but there can be no 
guarantee that preferences will be considered before places are offered on 30 
March 2012. 

 
2.25 Late applications not considered as part of the allocation round and any 

applications received after 30 March 2012 but before the start of the school year, 
will be considered as part of the co-ordinated arrangements and a place offered 
at the highest preference school or academy that has a place available.  If all 
preferred schools or academies are full and the pupil lives in Central 
Bedfordshire, a place will generally be offered at the nearest school or academy 
with places available.  However, it may be necessary to make a priority placement 
available for children in rural areas whose application is late for good reason. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 5a
Page 46



Appendix B 

Page 5 of 11 

Part B – Primary and Lower Schools and lower phase Academies 
 
2.26 There will be a standard form known as the Standard Application Form (SAF). 
 
2.27 The SAF will be used for the purposes of admitting pupils into the intake year of a 

primary, lower school or lower phase academy (Year R). 
 

2.28 Parents of all children born between 1/9/07 and 31/8/08 and living in Central 
Bedfordshire will be able to apply for a school or academy place using the SAF. 
The SAF will be available with the Starting School booklet from any local primary, 
lower school or lower phase academy, from the School Admissions Service or it 
can be downloaded from the Local Authority website.  
 

2.29 The Starting School booklet which will contain information on: 
 

Ø the schools and academies in Central Bedfordshire; 
Ø schools’ and academies admission numbers and admissions criteria; 
Ø how to complete the standard application form; 
Ø how to make an on-line application; 
Ø how places are allocated; 
Ø timetable for the application and allocation process; 
Ø school transport 
Ø who to contact for advice 

 
2.30 Parents of children living in Central Bedfordshire who wish to apply for a primary, 

lower school or lower phase academy place in another Local Authority must also 
use this application form. 
  

2.31 Parents of children who do not live in Central Bedfordshire but who wish to apply 
for a place at a Central Bedfordshire school or academy must complete an 
application form available from their home Local Authority.  
 

2.32 Parents of children living in Central Bedfordshire will be able to apply on-line for a 
school or academy place.  

 
2.33 The SAF or on-line application form will enable parents/carers to:  
 

Ø express a preference for up to 3 schools / academies 
 

Ø give reasons for their preferences 
 

Ø rank their preferences 
 
 
The Timetable 
 
2.34 In October 2011, the Local Authority Starting School booklet and the SAF will be 

available to parents of children living in Central Bedfordshire. Parents of children 
who do not live in Central Bedfordshire must contact their home Local Authority 
for an application form. 
 

2.35 Completed SAFs are to be returned to the School Admissions Service by 15 
January 2012. On-line applications are also to be submitted by this date.  
Parents of children who do not live in Central Bedfordshire must return their form 
to their home Local Authority. 
 

Agenda Item 5a
Page 47



Appendix B 

Page 6 of 11 

2.36  All preferences will be logged on the database and by 5 March 2012 applications 
for places in other Local Authority schools / academies are sent to those 
authorities. 

 
2.37 By 7 March 2012 the School Admissions Service will notify the admission 

authority for each foundation, voluntary aided, trust school and academy of every 
nomination that has been made for that school or academy. 
 

2.38 By 14 March 2012 the admission authority for each foundation, voluntary aided, 
trust school and academy will consider all applications for their school or 
academy, apply their oversubscription criteria and provide the School Admissions 
Service with a list of those applicants ranked according to their oversubscription 
criteria. All preferences will be ranked equally against the admissions criteria.  
 

2.39 The School Admissions Service will match the ranked lists against the ranked lists 
of other schools or academies nominated and: 
 
Ø where the child is eligible for a place at only one of the nominated schools or 

academies, that school or academy will be allocated to the child  
 

Ø where the child is eligible for a place at two or more of the nominated schools 
or academies, they will be allocated a place at whichever of these is the 
highest ranked preference 

 
2.40 Between 19 March 2012 and 30 March 2012 information will be exchanged with 

other Local Authorities on potential offers (i.e. a Central Bedfordshire child 
applying for a place in another Local Authority area or a child from another Local 
Authority applying for a place at a Central Bedfordshire school or academy) to 
determine the allocation of a place at the highest ranked preference. 

 
2.41 Where the child is not eligible for a place at any of the nominated schools or 

academies, the child will be allocated a place at the nearest appropriate school or 
academy with a vacancy, but only if the child is resident in Central Bedfordshire.  
If the child does not reside in Central Bedfordshire, parents will be invited to 
request a place at any of the schools or academies that still have vacancies.  
Priority will always be given to those parents who have expressed a preference 
for a particular school or academy over those who have not. 
 

2.42 On 26 April 2012 all primary, lower schools and lower phase academies will have 
access to details of the pupils to be offered places via the web based School 
Admissions Module.  
 

2.43 On 27 April 2012 the School Admissions Service will post letters to parents of 
children living in Central Bedfordshire notifying them of the outcome of their 
applications, including those who have applied for a place in another Local 
Authority school or academy. Parents who have applied online will be able to 
access the decision online. Parents of children who do not live in Central 
Bedfordshire will be notified by their home Local Authority. 
 

2.44 By 11 May 2012 parents are to notify School Admissions Service of acceptance 
or rejection of place offered. If parents do not respond by this date it will be 
assumed that they have accepted the place. 
 

2.45 By 11 May 2012 parents not offered a school place will be invited to request a 
place at a school or academy with vacancies. 

Agenda Item 5a
Page 48



Appendix B 

Page 7 of 11 

 
 

2.46 From 1 June 2012 the School Admissions Service will co-ordinate the re-
allocation of any places that have become vacant since 27 April 2012 and will 
continue to co-ordinate admissions until such time as the waiting lists are no 
longer maintained. 
 

Deferred Entry 
 
2.47 Parents of children offered a place for admission in September may defer the 

admission until January or April, provided the child is not of statutory school age.  
Parents of children offered a place for admission in January may defer the 
admission until April, provided the child is not of statutory school age. Parents of 
children offered a place for admission in April cannot defer admission until 
September. If those parents do not want their children to be admitted in April, they 
would need to re-apply for admission in September. 

 
Waiting Lists 
 
2.48 Pupils not offered a place at their highest preference school or academy or at any 

of their preferred schools or academies are kept on a waiting list to be re-
allocated if places become available. Where a pupil has been offered a place at 
their highest ranked school or academy, they will not be considered for re-
allocation, unless there has been a significant change in their personal 
circumstances. 
 

2.49 Waiting lists will be maintained until the end of the Autumn term 2012. Parents 
wishing their children to remain on the waiting list for a Central Bedfordshire 
school or academy beyond that time will have to notify the School Admissions 
Service in writing. A revised waiting list will then be drawn up and maintained until 
the end of that academic year. 
 

Late Applications 
 
2.50 The closing date for applications in the normal admissions round is 15 January 

2012.  As far as is reasonably practicable applications for places in the normal 
admissions round that are received late for a good reason will be accepted 
provided they are received before 7 March 2012, the date the allocation 
procedure begins.   

 
2.51 Applications received late with good reason after the allocation procedure has 

begun on 7 March 2012, will be considered if practicable, but there can be no 
guarantee that preferences will be considered before places are offered on 27 
April 2012. 

 
2.52 Late applications not considered as part of the allocation round and any 

applications received after 27 April 2012 but before the start of the school year, 
will be considered as part of the co-ordinated arrangements and a place offered 
at the highest preference school or academy that has a place available. If all 
preferred schools or academies are full and the pupil lives in Central 
Bedfordshire, a place will generally be offered at the nearest school or academy 
with places available.  However, it may be necessary to make a priority 
placement available for children in rural areas whose application is late for good 
reason. 

 

Agenda Item 5a
Page 49



Appendix B 

Page 8 of 11 

In-year Admissions 
 
2.53 If a parent wishes to apply for a school or academy place on or after the start of 

the school year or during the school year, because they have either moved into 
the area or moved within the area or simply because they wish to transfer their 
child to another school or academy, they are likely to make contact with the local 
school, academy or the Local Authority. 
 

2.54 All schools and academies will be supplied with copies of the In-Year guidance 
notes for parents and copies of the In-Year Admissions application form, which 
will enable parents to express a preference for up to 3 schools or academies and 
to rank their preferences. 

 
2.55 Parents of children living in Central Bedfordshire who wish to apply for a place in 

a school or academy in another Local Authority area must also complete the In-
Year application form. The form is available to download from the Local Authority 
website.  

 
2.56 Parents of children who do not live in Central Bedfordshire but who wish to apply 

for a place at a Central Bedfordshire school or academy must complete an 
application form available from their home Local Authority and return the form to 
that Local Authority. 

 
2.57 Parents of children living in Central Bedfordshire must return their application 

form to the School Admissions Service. If the application is for a place at a 
community or voluntary controlled school, for which the Local Authority is the 
admission authority, the application will be determined by the School Admissions 
Service. If the application is for a place at a foundation, voluntary aided, trust 
school or academy, for which the governing body is the admission authority, the 
School Admissions Service will contact the school or academy to determine 
whether a place is available. If the application is for a place at a school or 
academy in another Local Authority area, the School Admissions Service will 
forward details to that Local Authority indicating whether or not a place could be 
offered at a school or academy in Central Bedfordshire (if the parent has applied 
for a place in Central Bedfordshire). 
 

2.58 Where a child is eligible for a place at more than one school or academy, a place 
will be offered at the school or academy ranked the highest by the parent. The 
School Admissions Service will notify the relevant school, academy or Local 
Authority of the outcome of that process. 
 

2.59 The School Admissions Service will notify parents of children living in Central 
Bedfordshire of the outcome of their application, irrespective of whether the 
school or academy is within Central Bedfordshire. Acceptance of the place must 
be received within two weeks of the date of the offer. 

 
2.60 If all preferred schools or academies are full and the pupil lives in Central 

Bedfordshire, a place will generally be offered at the nearest school or academy 
with places available, unless the child is already attending a local school or 
academy. For those pupils who have moved to a rural area, it may be necessary 
to make a priority place available at the local school or academy. 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 5a
Page 50



Appendix B 

Page 9 of 11 

2.61 Pupils not offered a place at their highest preference school or academy or at any 
of their preferred schools or academies are kept on a waiting list. Where a pupil 
has been offered a place at their highest ranked school or academy, they will not 
be placed on the waiting list for any lower ranked schools or academies, unless 
there has been a significant change in their personal circumstances. 

 
2.62 Waiting lists for schools and academies in Central Bedfordshire will be maintained 

until the end of the term in which the place has been requested. Waiting lists for 
schools or academies in other Local Authority areas will be maintained by that 
Local Authority in accordance with their co-ordinated schemes. 
 

2.63 Parents wishing their children to remain on the waiting list for a Central 
Bedfordshire school or academy beyond that time will have to notify the School 
Admissions Service in writing. A revised waiting list will then be drawn up and 
maintained until the end of that academic year. 

Agenda Item 5a
Page 51



Appendix B 

Page 10 of 11 

 
Timetable for Co-ordinated Admissions to Middle Schools and future 
middle phase Academies - September 2012 
 

 
October 2011: Standard Application Form issued (School Transfer booklet  

available on request) 
 
15 January 2012: Closing date for receipt of applications 
 
10 February 2012: Applications for places in other Local Authority middle 

schools and academies sent to those authorities 
 
24 February 2012: By this date details of applications to be sent to foundation, 

voluntary aided and trust schools and academies 
 
5 March 2012: By this date foundation, voluntary aided and trust schools 

and academies provide School Admissions Service with 
ranked lists of applicants 

 
12 March 2012 –  Between these dates information to be exchanged with 
19 March 2012  other Local Authorities on potential offers 
 
29 March 2012: Information on pupils to be offered places will be available 

to schools and academies via the web based School 
Admissions Module 
 

30 March 2012: Notification to be posted to parents living in Central  
Bedfordshire and available online 

 
20 April 2012:   Date by which parents accept or reject offer of a place 
 
20 April 2012: Date by which parents not offered a place can request a 

place at a school or academy with vacancies 
 
From 8 May 2012: School Admissions Service will allocate any places that 

have become available 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5a
Page 52



Appendix B 

Page 11 of 11 

Timetable for Co-ordinated Admissions to Primary and Lower Schools and 
lower phase Academies - September 2012 
 
 
October 2011: Lower school booklet and Standard Application Form 

available 
 
15 January 2012:  Closing date for receipt of applications 
 
5 March 2012: Applications for places in other Local Authority schools and 

academies sent to those authorities 
 
7 March 2012: By this date details of applications to be sent to foundation, 

voluntary aided and trust schools and academies 
 
14 March 2012: By this date foundation, voluntary aided and trust schools 

and academies provide School Admissions Service with 
ranked lists of applicants 
 

19 March 2012 –  Between these dates information to be exchanged with 
30 March 2012  other Local Authorities on potential offers 
 
26 April 2012: Information on pupils to be offered places will be available 

to schools and academies via the web based School 
Admissions Module 
 

27 April  2012: Notification to be posted to parents living in Central  
Bedfordshire and available online 

 
11 May 2012:   Date by which parents accept or reject offer of a place 
 
11 May 2012: Date by which parents not offered a place can request a 

place at a school or academy with vacancies 
 
From 1 June 2012: School Admissions Service will allocate any places that 

have become available 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 2010 
 
g:\pab\admiss\word\co-ordinated schemes\central beds\consult_middle_primary_lower_2012.doc 

Agenda Item 5a
Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

Page 1 of 6 

CO-ORDINATED SCHEME FOR ADMISSIONS TO 
UPPER SCHOOLS AND ACADEMIES - ACADEMIC YEAR 2012/2013 
 
Section 1 
 
Introduction 
 
1.1 The School Standards and Framework Act 1998, as amended by the Education 

Act 2002 and supported by The School Admission (Co-ordination of Admission 
Arrangements) (England) Regulations 2008, requires Local Authorities to 
formulate a scheme for co-ordinating admission arrangements for all maintained 
schools in their area.  Academies are required to participate in the co-ordinated 
scheme. 
 

1.2 A school is defined as any maintained community, voluntary controlled, voluntary 
aided, foundation, trust school or academy in the Central Bedfordshire Council 
area.  

 
1.3 The Local Authority is the admission authority for all community and voluntary 

controlled schools. The admission authority for voluntary aided, foundation and 
trust schools and academies is the governing body of the school or academy. 
 

1.4 This scheme will apply to all upper school and upper phase academy admissions 
in the Central Bedfordshire Council area from September 2012. 
 

1.5 Any reference to Central Bedfordshire is a reference to the administrative area of 
the unitary authority. 

 
Section 2 
 
The Scheme 
 
2.1 There will be a standard form known as the Standard Application Form (SAF). 

 
2.2 The SAF will be used for the purposes of admitting pupils into the first year of an 

upper school or upper phase academy (Year 9). 
 

2.3 Parents of all children living in Central Bedfordshire and attending a middle 
school or middle phase academy in the Local Authority area will receive the SAF. 
The School Transfer booklet, available on request and on the Local Authority 
website, will contain information on: 
 

Ø the schools and academies in Central Bedfordshire; 
Ø dates of open evenings; 
Ø schools’ and academies admission numbers and admissions criteria; 
Ø how to complete the standard application form; 
Ø how to make an on-line application; 
Ø how places are allocated; 
Ø timetable for the application and allocation process; 
Ø school transport 
Ø who to contact for advice 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5a
Page 55



Appendix A 

Page 2 of 6 

2.4 Parents of children attending a middle school, or middle phase academy, in 
Central Bedfordshire who do not live in the Local Authority area must complete an 
application form available from their home Local Authority.  
 

2.5 Parents of children living in Central Bedfordshire but not attending a middle 
school, or middle phase academy, in the Local Authority area and those who wish 
to apply for an upper school or upper phase academy place in another Local 
Authority may obtain the SAF and School Transfer booklet from the School 
Admissions Service. The SAF and booklet are also available to download from 
the Local Authority website. 
 

2.6 Parents of children living in Central Bedfordshire will also be able to apply on-line 
for a school or academy place. 
 

2.7 The SAF or on-line application form will enable parents / carers to:  
 
Ø express a preference for up to 3 schools / academies 

 
Ø give reasons for their preferences 

 
Ø  rank their preferences 

 
2.8 Parents of children living in Central Bedfordshire who wish to apply for a 

secondary school place (Year 7) in another Local Authority can obtain the 
Transfer to Secondary School application form from the School Admissions 
Service. The form is also available to download from the Local Authority website. 
Parents are not able to apply on-line for a secondary school place. 
 

The Timetable 
 
2.9 In September 2011 the SAF is sent to parents of all children living in and 

attending a middle school or middle phase academy in the Local Authority area. 
Parents of children who do not live in Central Bedfordshire will be advised to 
contact their home Local Authority. 
 

2.10 Completed SAFs are to be returned to the School Admissions Service by 31 
October 2011 via the middle school, middle phase academy or to the School 
Admissions Service. On-line applications are also to be submitted by this date. 
Parents of children who do not live in Central Bedfordshire must return their form 
to their home Local Authority. 
 

2.11 By 2 December 2011 applications for places in other Local Authority schools / 
academies are sent to those authorities. 
 

2.12 All preferences will be logged on the database and by 9 January 2012 the School 
Admissions Service will notify the admission authority for each foundation, 
voluntary aided, trust school and academy of every nomination that has been 
made for that school or academy. 
 

2.13 By 20 January 2012 the admission authority for each foundation, voluntary aided, 
trust school and academy will consider all applications for their school or 
academy, apply their oversubscription criteria and provide the School Admissions 
Service with a list of those applicants ranked according to their oversubscription 
criteria. All preferences will be ranked equally against the admissions criteria.  
 
 

Agenda Item 5a
Page 56



Appendix A 

Page 3 of 6 

2.14 The School Admissions Service will match the ranked lists against the ranked lists 
of other schools or academies nominated. 
 
Ø where the child is eligible for a place at only one of the nominated schools or 

academies, that school or academy will be allocated to the child  
 

Ø where the child is eligible for a place at two or more of the nominated schools 
or academies, they will be allocated a place at whichever of these is the 
highest ranked preference 

 
2.15 Between 6 February 2012 and 17 February 2012 information will be exchanged 

with other Local Authorities on potential offers (i.e. a Central Bedfordshire child 
applying for a place in another Local Authority area or a child from another Local 
Authority applying for a place at a Central Bedfordshire school or academy) to 
determine the allocation of a place at the highest ranked preference.  
 

2.16 Where the child is not eligible for a place at any of the nominated schools or 
academies, the child will be allocated a place at the nearest appropriate school or 
academy with a vacancy, but only if the child is resident in Central Bedfordshire. If 
the child does not reside in Central Bedfordshire, parents will be invited to request 
a place at any of the schools or academies that still have vacancies.  Priority will 
always be given to those parents who have expressed a preference for a 
particular school or academy over those who have not. 
 

2.17 On 28 February 2012 all upper schools and upper phase academies will have 
access to details of the pupils to be offered places via the web based School 
Admissions Module.   
 

2.18 On 1 March 2012 the School Admissions Service will post letters to parents of 
children living in Central Bedfordshire notifying them of the outcome of their 
applications, including those who have applied for an upper, secondary school or 
academy place in another Local Authority. Parents who have applied online will 
be able to access the decision online. Parents of children who do not live in 
Central Bedfordshire will be notified by their home Local Authority. 
 

2.19 By 15 March 2012 parents are to notify the School Admissions Service of 
acceptance or rejection of place offered.  If parents do not respond by this date it 
will be assumed that they have accepted the place.   
 

2.20 By 15 March 2012 parents not offered a place will be invited to request a place at 
a school or academy with vacancies. 
 

2.21 From 2 April 2012 the School Admissions Service will co-ordinate the re-
allocation of any places that have become vacant since 1 March 2012 and will 
continue to co-ordinate admissions until such time as the waiting lists are no 
longer maintained. 
 

 
Waiting Lists 
 
2.22 Pupils not offered a place at their highest preference school or academy or at any 

of their preferred schools or academies are kept on a waiting list to be re-
allocated if places become available. Where a pupil has been offered a place at 
their highest ranked school or academy, they will not be considered for re-
allocation, unless there has been a significant change in their personal 

Agenda Item 5a
Page 57



Appendix A 

Page 4 of 6 

circumstances. 
 

2.23  Waiting lists will be maintained until the end of the Autumn term 2012. Parents 
wishing their children to remain on the waiting list for a Central Bedfordshire 
school or academy beyond that time will have to notify the School Admissions 
Service in writing. A revised waiting list will then be drawn up and maintained until 
the end of that academic year. 

 
 
Late Applications  
 
2.24 The closing date for applications in the normal admissions round is 31 October 

2011.  As far as is reasonably practicable applications for places in the normal 
admissions round that are received late for a good reason will be accepted 
provided they are received before 9 January 2012, the date the allocation 
procedure begins.   
 

2.25  Applications received late with good reason after the allocation procedure has 
begun on 9 January 2012, will be considered if practicable, but there can be no 
guarantee that preferences will be considered before places are offered on 1 
March 2012. 
 

2.26  Late applications not considered as part of the allocation round and any 
applications received after 1 March 2012 but before the start of the school year,  
will be considered as part of the co-ordinated arrangements and a place offered 
at the highest preference school or academy that has a place available.  If all 
preferred schools or academies are full and the pupil lives in Central 
Bedfordshire, a place will generally be offered at the nearest school or academy 
with places available.  However, it may be necessary to make a priority placement 
available for children living in rural areas whose application is late for good 
reason. 
 

 
In-year Admissions 

 
2.27 If a parent wishes to apply for a school or academy place on or after the start of 

the school year or during the school year, because they have either moved into 
the area or moved within the area or simply because they wish to transfer their 
child to another school or academy, they are likely to make contact with the local 
school, academy or the Local Authority. 
 

2.28 All schools and academies will be supplied with copies of the In-Year guidance 
notes for parents and copies of the In-Year Admissions application form, which 
will enable parents to express a preference for up to 3 schools or academies and 
to rank their preferences.  

 
2.29 Parents of children living in Central Bedfordshire who wish to apply for a place in 

a school or academy in another Local Authority area must also complete the In-
Year application form. The form is available to download from the Local Authority 
website. 

 
2.30 Parents of children who do not live in Central Bedfordshire but who wish to apply 

for a place at a Central Bedfordshire school or academy must complete an 
application form available from their home Local Authority and return the form to 
that Local Authority. 

 

Agenda Item 5a
Page 58



Appendix A 

Page 5 of 6 

2.31 Parents of children living in Central Bedfordshire must return their application 
form to the School Admissions Service. If the application is for a place at a 
community or voluntary controlled school, for which the Local Authority is the 
admission authority, the application will be determined by the School Admissions 
Service. If the application is for a place at a foundation, voluntary aided, trust 
school or academy, for which the governing body is the admission authority, the 
School Admissions Service will contact the school or academy to determine 
whether a place is available. If the application is for a place at a school or 
academy in another Local Authority area, the School Admissions Service will 
forward details to that Local Authority indicating whether or not a place could be 
offered at a school or academy in Central Bedfordshire (if the parent has applied 
for a place in Central Bedfordshire). 
 

2.32 Where a child is eligible for a place at more than one school or academy, a place 
will be offered at the school or academy ranked the highest by the parent. The 
School Admissions Service will notify the relevant school, academy or Local 
Authority of the outcome of that process. 
 

2.33 The School Admissions Service will notify parents of children living in Central 
Bedfordshire of the outcome of their application, irrespective of whether the 
school or academy is within Central Bedfordshire. Acceptance of the school place 
must be received within two weeks of the date of the offer. 

 
2.34 If all preferred schools or academies are full and the pupil lives in Central 

Bedfordshire, a place will generally be offered at the nearest school or academy 
with places available, unless the child is already attending a local school or 
academy. For those pupils who have moved to a rural area, it may be necessary 
to make a priority place available at the local school or academy. 

 
2.35 Pupils not offered a place at their highest preference school or academy or at any 

of their preferred schools or academies are kept on a waiting list. Where a pupil 
has been offered a place at their highest ranked school or academy, they will not 
be placed on the waiting list for any lower ranked schools or academies, unless 
there has been a significant change in their personal circumstances. 

 
2.36 Waiting lists for schools and academies in Central Bedfordshire will be maintained 

until the end of the term in which the place has been requested. Waiting lists for 
schools or academies in other Local Authority areas will be maintained by that 
Local Authority in accordance with their co-ordinated schemes. 
 

2.37 Parents wishing their children to remain on the waiting list for a Central 
Bedfordshire school or academy beyond that time will have to notify the School 
Admissions Service in writing. A revised waiting list will then be drawn up and 
maintained until the end of that academic year. 

Agenda Item 5a
Page 59



Appendix A 

Page 6 of 6 

 
Timetable for Co-ordinated Upper School and Academy Admissions 
September 2012 
 

 
September 2011: Standard Application Form issued (School Transfer booklet 

available on request) 
 

31 October 2011: Closing date for receipt of applications 
 
2 December 2011: Applications for places in other Local Authority schools and 

academies sent to those authorities 
 

9 January 2012: By this date details of applications to be sent to foundation, 
voluntary aided and trust schools and academies 

 
20 January 2012: By this date foundation, voluntary aided and trust schools 

and academies provide the School Admissions Service with 
ranked lists of applicants 
 

6 February 2012 – Between these dates information to be exchanged with  
17 February 2012 other Local Authorities on potential offers 
 
28 February 2012: Information on pupils to be offered places will be available 

to schools and academies via the web based School 
Admissions Module   
 

1 March 2012: Notification to be posted to parents living in Central  
Bedfordshire and available online 

 
15 March 2012:  Date by which parents accept or reject offer of a place 
 
15 March 2012: Date by which parents not offered a place can request a 

place at a school or academy with vacancies 
 
From 2 April 2012: School Admissions Service will start to allocate any places 

that have become available 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 2010 
 
g:\pab\admiss\word\co-ordinated schemes\central beds\consult_upper and academy_2012.doc 

Agenda Item 5a
Page 60



1 

 
 
 
Meeting: ADMISSIONS FORUM 

Date: 11 November 2010 

Subject: Admission Arrangements September 2012 - Standard Admissions 
Policy 

Report of: Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Children, Families and 
Learning 
 

Summary: The purpose of this report is to inform the Forum of the change in the 
definition section of the standard admissions policy for community and 
voluntary controlled schools. 
 

 
 
Contact Officer: Rosa Bonwick 

 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
1. 
 
 
 
2. 
 
 
 
3. 

That the change to the ‘very exceptional’ medical grounds definition of the 
standard admissions policy for community and voluntary controlled 
schools, for September 2012, be noted. 
 
That the governing bodies of foundation, trust and voluntary aided schools 
that include the medical grounds criterion within their policy be asked to 
make the necessary change. 
 
That, subject to the approval of the Secretary of State, the Academy 
considers making the necessary change. 
 

 
 
Background 
 
1. 
 

The proposed standard admissions policy for community and voluntary 
controlled schools, for September 2012, is attached at Appendix A. 
 

2. Although no changes are proposed to the oversubscription criteria, an 
amendment has been made to the section which relates to the definition of 
‘very exceptional’ medical grounds. The change is shown in italics and relates 
to the seeking of further information to determine whether it is essential for a 
child to be admitted to the preferred school on medical grounds.  The existing 
definition refers to advice being sought from the Authority’s medical officer, a 
role which no longer exists. 
 

Agenda Item 5b
Page 61



2 

3. This is not a significant change to the admission arrangements and the Local 
Authority would not normally be required to consult. However, it is important 
that schools are aware of the change and for that reason it is proposed to 
circulate the amended policy together with any other changes to the admission 
arrangements which may be required. 
 

4. 
 

Members of the Forum are asked to recommend to the governing bodies of 
foundation, trust and voluntary aided schools that include the medical grounds 
criterion within their policy, that they make the necessary change to the 
definition section of their policies for September 2012. The Academy may also 
wish to consider making the change, subject to the approval of the Secretary 
of State. 
 

 
 

 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A  Standard Admissions Policy 2012 

Community and Voluntary Controlled Schools 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 October 2010 
 
g:\pab\admiss\word\forum central beds\11 nov 10\admissions policy.doc 

Agenda Item 5b
Page 62



Appendix A 
 
Standard Admissions Policy 2012 
Community and Voluntary Controlled Schools 
 

The Local Authority will apply the following criteria (in the rank order shown) to 
decide the order in which places will be allocated when there are more 
requests from parents / carers than the number of places available: 
 

1. All 'looked after' children (see definition); 

2. Pupils living in the catchment area with siblings at the school (see 
definition of sibling); 

3. Other pupils living in the catchment area; 

4.  ‘Very exceptional’ medical grounds (see definition); 

5. Other siblings (see definition); 

6. Any other children 

 

Notes 

1. If applying these criteria results in there being more children with an equal 
right  
to admission to the school than the number of available places, the tie 
break will be the distance the pupil lives from the school, measured in a 
straight line, using the Local Authority’s computerised measuring system, 
with those living closer to the school receiving the higher priority. The 
Local Authority will measure the distance from the address point of the 
pupil’s home to a point on the school site agreed with the governing body 
of the school. The Local Authority will not give priority within each criterion 
to children who meet other criteria. 

2. The Local Authority will normally offer a place at the catchment area 
school if parents apply for a place at that school during the normal 
admissions round. However, a place at the catchment area school cannot 
be guaranteed. If a pupil moves into the catchment area outside the 
normal admissions round (or after the allocation process has begun) it 
may be more difficult to offer a place at the catchment area school if this 
would mean exceeding the admission number at the school.  In this case, 
a place will normally be offered at the next nearest maintained school 
which caters for pupils of the same age and has places available. 

3. Pupils who have a Statement of Special Educational Needs are required 
to be admitted to the school which is named on the statement, even if the 
school is full. Pupils identified for admission through the Fair Access 
Protocol will also be admitted even if the school is full. 

Agenda Item 5b
Page 63



Definitions 
 
'Looked after' children 

The Children Act 1989 defines a child who is ‘looked after’ as a child or young 
person who is accommodated by the local authority (Section 20) or a child or 
young person who is the subject of a full care order (Section 31) or interim 
care order (Section 38). 
 

Sibling 

A sibling refers to a brother or sister, half brother or sister, adopted brother or 
sister, step brother or sister or the child of the parent / carer’s partner, and in 
every case, the child should be living at the same address. The sibling must 
be in the school at the time of application and be likely to remain in the school 
at the proposed date of admission. 
 

‘Very Exceptional’ Medical Grounds 

‘Very exceptional’ medical grounds refers to cases where there are 
exceptional medical reasons which make it essential that a child should 
attend a particular school and where the preferred school is the only school 
locally that could meet the child's needs.  A medical report from the child's 
doctor or consultant must be submitted with the application form, setting out 
valid medical reasons why it is essential for the child to be admitted to the 
school in question and the difficulties that would be caused if the child had to 
attend another school. The Local Authority reserves the right to seek further 
information in order to determine whether it is essential for a child to be 
admitted to the preferred school on medical grounds. Admission on medical 
grounds cannot be considered where the medical condition relates to that of a 
parent / carer, brother or sister or other relative/childminder. 
 

Home Address 

A pupil's home address will be regarded as the address of the parent / carer 
with parental responsibility with whom the child normally lives.  This will not 
usually include grandparents, aunts or uncles.  Where a child spends time 
with parents / carers at more than one address, the address used to allocate a 
school place will be the one at which the pupil is ordinarily resident and where 
the child spends the majority of the school week (Mondays to Fridays) 
including nights.  If there is any query on the home address this will be 
checked against original official documentation e.g. council tax bill, a recent 
utility bill (gas, electricity or water), a rental agreement, child benefit annual 
statement or family tax credit information. 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 5b
Page 64



 

 

 

October 2010 

g:\pab\admiss\word\forum central beds\11 nov 10\standard policy.doc 

Agenda Item 5b
Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
 
 
Meeting: ADMISSIONS FORUM 

Date: 11 November 2010 

Subject: Admission Arrangements September 2012 - Admission Numbers 

Report of: Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Children, Families and 
Learning 
 

Summary: The purpose of this report is to inform the Forum that currently no 
changes are proposed to the admission numbers for community and 
voluntary controlled schools nor are any changes proposed to the 
exceptions which may result in the admission number for a school 
being exceeded. 

 
 
Contact Officer: Rosa Bonwick 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
To note the exceptions which may result in the admission number 
 being exceeded 
 
 
 
Changes to Admission Numbers 
 
1. 
 

There are currently no proposals to increase the admission number at any of 
the community and voluntary controlled schools. 
 

2. The Local Authority will, however, be writing to community and voluntary 
controlled schools about the arrangements proposed for September 2012. 
This may result in some changes which will be reported to the next meeting of 
the Forum. 
 

Admissions above the published admission number 
 
3. 
 

At the meeting of the Forum on 21 October 2009, members agreed the 
exceptions which may result in the admission number for a school being 
exceeded. A copy of those exceptions is attached at Appendix A. No changes 
to those exceptions are proposed. 
 

 
 

Appendices: 
 
Appendix A – Admissions above the published admission number 
 
October 2010 
g:\pab\admiss\word\forum central beds\11 nov 10\pans.doc 

Agenda Item 5c
Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix A 
 
 

Admissions above the published admission number 
 
The Central Bedfordshire Admissions Forum has agreed the following 
exceptions which may result in the admission number for a school being 
exceeded: 
 

• The admission of catchment area pupils, where the parent has 
expressed a preference (whether first, second or third), for the 
catchment school as part of the normal admissions round and in 
accordance with the published admissions arrangements. This is not, 
however, a guarantee of a place 
 

• The admission of pupils who have a Statement of Special Educational 
Needs which names the school, when that pupil has either been 
assessed or moved into the area outside the normal admissions round  
 

• The admission of pupils in accordance with the Fair Access Protocol 
 

• The admission of pupils who have moved into the area, where there is 
no other suitable school within a reasonable travelling distance, or 
where the admission of an additional catchment area child would not 
prejudice the provision of efficient education or the efficient use of 
resources. Before admitting children under this exception, governing 
bodies that are their own admission authority should consult their Local 
Authority who will be able  to advise whether the first of these 
conditions applies 
 

• The admission of a looked after child outside of the normal admissions 
round as a result of a direction by the local authority acting as 
corporate parent 
 

• The admission of a child in very exceptional circumstances in which the 
Local Authority and the headteacher are in agreement that not to agree 
to admit the child would be perverse 
 

• The admission of a twin or children from multiple births provided the 
admission would not cause a breach of infant class size limits. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
October 2010 
 
g:\pab\admiss\word\forum central beds\11 nov 10\above pan.doc 

Agenda Item 5c
Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
 
 
Meeting: ADMISSIONS FORUM 

Date: 11 November 2010 

Subject: Admission Arrangements September 2012 
Co-ordinated Admission Schemes 

Report of: Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Children, Families and 
Learning 
 

Summary: The purpose of this report is to inform the Forum of the proposed co-
ordinated admission schemes for 2012/2013.  
 

 
 
Contact Officer: Rosa Bonwick 

 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
1. 
 
 
2. 
 
 

To note the proposed co-ordinated admissions scheme for upper schools 
and academies 
 
To note the proposed co-ordinated admissions scheme for middle, primary, 
lower schools and academies 

 
 
Co-ordinated Scheme for Upper Schools and Academies 
 
1. The proposed co-ordinated scheme for upper schools and academies is 

attached at Appendix A.   
 

2. There are a few very minor changes to the scheme: 
 

• Reference to the transfer booklet being available only on request 
• Reference to possible future middle phase academies 
• The timescales which have been updated for 2012/2013 

 
Co-ordinated Scheme for Middle, Primary, Lower Schools and Academies 
 
3. 
 

The proposed co-ordinated scheme for middle, primary, lower schools and 
academies is attached at Appendix B.  
 

4. There are a few very minor changes to the scheme: 
 

• Reference to possible future middle phase academies 
• Reference to lower phase academies 
• Reference to the transfer booklet being available only on request 

Agenda Item 5d
Page 71



2 

• The timescales which have been updated for 2012/2013 
 

5. Members of the Forum will note that the national closing date of 15 January 
2012 falls at the weekend. The Department for Education has confirmed that 
the national closing dates have been set irrespective of whether those dates 
are working days. 
 

Consultation 
 
6. 
 

As there are no significant changes to the co-ordinated schemes the Local 
Authority is not required to consult on the schemes. 
 
The inclusion of lower phase academies reflects the current position in Central 
Bedfordshire and reference to middle phase academies provides for their 
establishment in the future. 
 
The timescales have been updated, but are not significantly different from 
those determined for 2011/2012. It is important, however, that schools and 
academies are aware of the timescales and it is proposed, therefore, to issue 
the schemes for information purposes only. 
 

 
 

 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A - Co-ordinated Scheme for admissions to Upper Schools and Academies -
Academic Year 2012/2013 
 
Appendix B - Co-ordinated Scheme for admission to Middle, Primary, Lower Schools 
and Academies - Academic Year 2012/2013 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 October 2010 

 
g:\pab\admiss\word\forum central beds\11 nov 10\co-ordinated schemes.doc 

Agenda Item 5d
Page 72



 
 
 
Meeting: ADMISSIONS FORUM 

Date: 11 November 2010 

Subject: Admission Arrangements September 2012 - Open Evenings 

Report of: Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Children, Families and 
Learning 
 

Summary: The purpose of this report is to seek the views and agreement of the 
Forum on the proposed dates for open evenings  
 

 
 
Contact Officer: Rosa Bonwick 

 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
To agree the proposed dates for the open evenings and to recommend those dates 
to schools and the academy 
 
 
 
Background 
 
1. The proposed dates for open evenings are: 

 
Upper Schools and Academy:   19 September 2011 – 21 October 2011 
Middle Schools:                          1 November 2011 – 25 November 2011 
 

2. Although the dates for the open evenings are part of the admission arrangements 
for September 2012, they are not subject to consultation. However, it is helpful to 
have the views of members of the Forum, and in particular headteacher and 
academy members, on the proposed timescales. 
 

3. 
 

Members of the Forum are, therefore, asked to consider the proposed dates and if 
agreed to recommend those dates to schools and the academy. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 2010 
 
g:\pab\admiss\word\forum central beds\11 nov 10\open evenings.doc 

Agenda Item 5e
Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Fair Access Protocol
	4 In-Year Admissions
	item 4 In-Year Guidance Notes for Schools

	5a Consultation
	item 5(a) Consult_Middle_Primary_Lower_2012
	item 5(a) Consult_Upper and Academy_2012

	5b Standard Admissions Policy
	item 5(b) Standard Admissions Policy

	5c Admission Numbers
	item 5(c) Above PAN

	5d Co-ordinated Admission Schemes
	5e Open Evenings

